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Message from

SKA’s President
In 2021, the world continued to grapple with the adverse effects
of the COVID-19 pandemic. In Singapore, we were also severely
impacted by the outbreak, with measures being implemented by the
government at different times of the year to tackle the spread of
the virus.
These measures, while necessary, led to significant challenges
for the Singapore Khalsa Association (SKA) in our operations and
event management. First, we had to review the events and activities
we could organise for our members, given the safe management
measures (SMMs) in place. Secondly, the restrictions on the number
of attendees also affected the booking of SKA’s function venues.
Thirdly, as the tenants were also undergoing considerable strain
due to COVID-19, we had to be flexible and considerate on rental
collections, which consequently had an unfavourable effect on the
Association’s financial position.
However, we adapted and innovated in the face of these challenges.
We also exercised a high degree of enterprise and resourcefulness
so that we could cushion ourselves from the impact of the pandemic.
Achieving that, we also focused on meeting the needs and
requirements of the membership.
I am pleased to share that our combined efforts and resolve paid off.
The Association performed extremely well in the face of obstacles
placed by the pandemic.

Commendable Job by the Committees and Subcommittees
The Management Committee (MC) marked its second year in office
in 2021. Since being elected, the MC has been faced with the
COVID-19 scourge. Following a tough first year, which it handled
admirably, the MC continued with its efforts in several key fronts.
In addition to event organisation, these involved the renovation
and rectification work, membership promotions and partnership
development and collaborations, among others.
The work of the MC would not have been successful without the
unstinting support of the various Committees and Sub-committees.
Working hand in hand with the MC, these Committees and Subcommittees have been playing an important role in charting the
directions of the Association. We are extremely grateful to the
volunteers in these Committees and Sub-committees for spending
precious time and even resources in the pursuit of SKA’s mission
and objectives. In a disruptive COVID-19 year, these Committees
and Sub-committees performed remarkably well to ensure that the
Association continued with its programmes and activities.

Infrastructure Renovation and Rectification
The creation of new infrastructure facilities and maintenance of the
existing ones are important for SKA’s long-term success.
After almost two years of rectification and renovation works, SKA
now has improved facilities and members will have an enhanced
experience when visiting the Association.
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Despite the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the MC persevered
to ensure that the repair project, which encompassed repairing
of water seepages, rendering of cracks and de-bonded areas,
replacement of corroded fixtures and fittings, cladding rectification
and other corrective repairs, was successfully completed in June
2021.
The renovations also involved creating a new foyer area with
comfortable upholstered furniture, revamping the office and including
a surveillance control room, thus providing for a modernised board
room and improving the facilities for the sportspersons through the
provision of changing rooms.
We hope that our efforts will lead to the members feeling valued
and they, in turn, will show their appreciation by using the variety
of facilities available for them. At the same time, we hope that they
will continue to support and encourage the MC to make even further
transformations at SKA so that it continues to be a vibrant and
member-centric association.

Proactive Membership Recruitment
In 2020, we had the tough task of recruiting membership as many
activities and programmes at the Association were curtailed. Last
year, we doubled our efforts in membership recruitment, fully
recognising the fact that it would still be a challenge. However,
we were mot deterred. We came up with several membership
promotion campaigns to reach out to different segments of the Sikh
community.
I am pleased to report that these efforts led to SKA recruiting 28
members in 2021, up from 19 a year earlier. This is commendable,
given the adverse circumstances.
Moving forward, we have set our sights on further increasing the
membership size. The aim will be to reach out to and attract more
Sikh ladies and younger Sikhs to the Association. Therefore, we
hope to propose several constitutional changes to membership at
the Annual General Meeting in 2022 so that we can also make SKA
a family-focused and youth-oriented association. We look forward
to the support of the members in this respect.

Diversity of Events
As we were recovering from the challenges of 2020, we examined
the focus and range of our events to ensure that we were delivering,
as promised to the members. Such reviews have been a consistent
feature of the MC since it came into office. This exercise aims to
ensure that SKA remains relevant to the members.
We continued with the organisation of several events and activities
that have served us well in recent years. These included the Vesakhi
Mela, Diwali Nite, Lohri and Teeyan, albeit in a changed format,
chair yoga session, and the dhol and Bollywood dance classes. At
the same time, we also initiated several interesting activities such
as the observance ceremony and dialogue session to mark National
Day, the National Day Games, SEWA Healthcare’s health screening
programmes, storytelling sessions, mindful parenting workshops,
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mini-hockey and football tournaments, and video presentations on
using Zoom and making healthy gulab jamun.
The Association took the effort to ensure that it presented a range
of events and activities to meet the expectations of members. These
efforts, as well as the active outreach to the members, led to an
increase in member participation in the various events.

Partnership Development
The MC has always prided itself of reaching out and establishing
partnerships with compatible organisations in the Sikh community
and beyond for mutual benefits. As a result of the attractive range of
offerings at SKA, the number of organisations expressing an interest
to partner us has increased over the last couple of years.
Such outreach efforts allow the Association to engage in activities
and programmes well beyond our capacity, given our finite
resources. At the same time, they ensure that we can provide a
larger and more diverse range of offerings for our members. Lastly,
such collaborations fit in well with the Association’s important role
as a socially responsible member of the Sikh community and society
at large.
In 2021, we continued to make important contributions to the
development of the Sikh community and Singapore society at large.
We reached out to a significant number of organisations both in
and outside the Sikh community. These organistions span across
the health, educational, cultural, professional, social, recreational,
welfare and business realms.

Managing SKA’s Financial Situation
A difficult 2021 followed in the footsteps of an equally challenging
previous year. We faced similar challenges of declining revenues in
2021 as well.
We have five traditional important revenue sources – takings from
the restaurant, income from sports and facilities, fees from Khalsa
Kindergarten, fruit machines takings and function room bookings.
The COVID-19 situation continued to affect these revenue sources.
While three of the sources started to witness some positive signs,
the revenues were not comparable to the years prior to the outbreak
of the pandemic.

Association. We reduced the budgets of the Committees, where
feasible, and reached out to the tenants to make payments on their
arrears from 2020 and sourced for more sponsorships and donations
for our events and activities. Collectively, these efforts achieved
some degree of success, and we were able to have a reasonable
financial position at the end of the year. Given the unfavourable
situation created by the pandemic, this financial position was within
the MC’s expectations.

The Way Forward
During the last year, there were considerable challenges arising
from the COVID-19 pandemic. We knew that we had to think out of
the box and innovate. We succeeded in doing so and were able to
have a successful and rewarding year.
As we usher in the new year and look forward to functioning in a
changed national landscape, we hope to build on the recovery of
the last year to ensure that we will have more eventful and exciting
times at the Association.
Several key developments are already in the pipeline, which aim to
bring further buzz and dynamism to SKA. These include the official
opening of Khalsa Kindergarten on Level 5, the leasing out of the
rooms on Level 4 and the relocation of the lounge to Level 1. In
addition, we will place greater emphasis on new and interesting
programmes, including those targetted at the seniors and the youths
as well as developing the cultural platform at the Association.
Simultaneously, we will enhance sports and recreational offerings
through the introduction of such activities as balut and darts and
possibly lawn bowls. We can certainly expect more exciting times at
the Association as we move to a new post COVID-19 environment.
My MC and I would like to thank the members, volunteers,
partners, sponsors and well-wishers for their continued support
and participation in SKA’s activities and events. They have been an
intrinsic part of the Association and should be equally credited for
its success. Together, we will continue the efforts to ensure that the
Association continues to remain a dynamic, vibrant and memberfocused association.
Mr Hernaikh Singh
President

In response to the acute financial situation, we identified ways
to reduce expenditure to decrease the financial strain of the

During the last year, there were considerable challenges
arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. We knew that we
had to think out of the box and innovate. We succeeded
in doing so and were able to have a successful and
rewarding year.
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Year in
Review 2021
Towards the end of 2020, we saw a gradual easing of national
COVID-19 pandemic control measures and the associated
restrictions many of us, to an extent, had even gotten used to living
with. Nationally, the posture was to remain cautious but continue,
as far as possible and safely, to live our lives as we had known
before the pandemic. This meant bringing families, friends and
communities together once again.
The Management Committee (MC) at the Singapore Khalsa
Association (SKA), with our dedicated volunteers and staff felt SKA
must contribute by playing a crucial role in bringing our members,
the community and our many well-wishers and friends back together.
We were able to do so through the excellent and hard work of the
various Committees that brought the bustle and vibrancy back to
SKA in 2021 by encouraging everyone to come back and participate
in the various activities at the Association.
We share some highlights of the work of these Committees in 2021.

Building and Facilities Committee
The COVID-19 pandemic presented significant challenges and
disruptions to the Association’s revenue. While some constraints
manifested through austerity and the imperative of close budgetary
controls, the Association embarked on and successfully completed
several improvement projects in 2021.
The Building and Facilities Committee was able to press on with
its work guided by some key principles. These included the need to
complete any new works or repairs to existing infrastructure with
the view of enhancing the physical spaces in SKA and prioritising
safety above all.
Some key developments at SKA, which members can look forward
to enjoying in and beyond 2021, include a new foyer area, a newly
renovated board room, a completely revamped office space and
surveillance control room and several improved facilities for sports
activities.
These renovations and additions have given SKA not only a bright
and refreshing new appearance, but it has also enhanced members
and visitors’ experience at the Association.

Cultural and Social Committee
The Sikh community in Singapore is synonymous with its lively and
vibrant culture. In 2021, the Cultural and Social Committee continued
to bring the community together by organising meaningful cultural
activities and platforms. At the same time, it arranged for social and
networking opportunities for the members.
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The Vesakhi Mela has always been a grand affair at the Association.
While we had to cancel the fair in 2020 when the COVID-19
pandemic broke out and due to the subsequent Circuit Breaker, we
improvised and presented the Mela in a different fashion in 2021 –
we organised a diverse range of social, cultural, sporting and healthrelated events spread over three days. The Committee took the lead
in organising the Bollybeats and bhangra dance classes and the
Punjabi Poetry Competition. The attendees appreciated the effort
to bring the Mela back to SKA, albeit under controlled conditions
of the pandemic.
In August, 2021, SKA organised its first ever National Day
observance ceremony in recent history. The effort by SKA and the
Sikh community was indicative of the fact that everyone can make a
difference and that each community, no matter how small or large,
counts.
Mr Desmond Tan, Minister of State for Home Affairs and
Sustainability and the Environment, graced the ceremony. During
the event, he participated in a dialogue session with the participants
on ‘Singapore turns 56: Hopes and Aspirations of a Nation’. The
discussions focused on Singapore’s integration efforts; the creation
of platforms and spaces for open dialogue on race and religion;
leadership succession; and economic priorities for Singapore,
among others.
Another important highlight was the Diwali celebrations in
November 2021. Despite several restrictions in place due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, we wanted to bring the members together
to mark an important occasion. Held at Moghul Mahal restaurant,
the dinner event was attended by a limited number of just under
100 people, including groups of families and friends. It included a
delicious sit-down buffet, prizes for three best dressed males and
females in cultural outfits and a grand lucky draw. Each one of the
attendees went home with a goodie bag.
In addition to these large-scale activities, the Committee also
focused on interest groups within the membership. In this respect,
the Committee continued with several regular activities, including
taekwondo classes, Bollybeats dance classes and the dhol lessons.
These have been garnering strong support and participation across
the SKA membership.

Education Committee
The Education Committee at SKA had an especially busy 2021 as it
dove into plans and worked diligently on the relocation project of
Khalsa Kindergarten. Having gotten the approval of the relocation
budget from the members at the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
in 2020, the work of the Committee was cut out for it. Therefore,
it brought the Committee much joy when, at the kindergarten’s
graduation ceremony in November 2021, it was able to share with
the parents, staff and, most importantly, pupils of the kindergarten
that they would be able to move into their new premises in 2022.
Some of the benefits that will be derived and enjoyed by the
pupils and their families include greater accessibility to the new
kindergarten premises with the availability of more public transport
options, specially designed and equipped learning spaces, and a
rooftop play area. Similarly, the kindergarten staff can also look
forward to better equipped classrooms and meeting rooms to meet
their teaching and learning needs.
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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By the end of 2021, the Committee took over the keys to the
completed and new kindergarten after an Ardaas ceremony at the
new premises. We hope that the current and future pupils will look
forward to learning and creating meaningful memories of their
foundational years in education.

Ladies Wing
The year 2021 was nationally declared to be the ‘Year of Celebrating
SG Women’. At SKA, we have much to be grateful and celebrate
when it comes to the efforts of the Ladies Wing throughout the
years.
The Ladies Wing led the way and ushered in the new year with
the first of a return to in-person events with Lohri celebrations in
January 2021. While there were limits on the attendance for the
event, the great pomp and festivities were not diminished as the
Committee strived and was determined to put together a meaningful
celebration. The attendees enjoyed traditional food such as gajak
and the innovative use of technology that continued to be a
mainstay, enabled the streaming of giddha performances and a
slideshow of photographs put together to show support for newly
married couples and growing families with newborn babies.
Throughout 2021, the Ladies Wing leveraged on networking
platforms for the wider engagement of Sikh women in Singapore.
Coming out of the pandemic, it wanted to continue with some of
the momentum it had developed in increasing awareness and
understanding among its members and all who joined its activities
on the importance of exercise, health and active ageing, the gift
of giving back to the community, and to continue to promote and
appreciate Punjabi heritage and culture.
The Committee brought back chair yoga to improve the ladies’
physical and mental well-being. As part of the International Women’s
Day Celebrations in March 2021, the Ladies Wing organised a
kilometre walk of the Jurassic Mile at Changi. This was followed by
a brisk walk and healthy high tea in August 2021 which saw more
participation as Phase 2 of reopening was announced nationally.
The brisk walk also brought the Ladies Wing together to celebrate
National Day. In addition to physical activities to promote health,
the Ladies Wing realised the importance of impressing upon others
on making better dietary choices. Towards the end of the year, the
Committee decided to first experiment and then later show that it
was possible to make healthier versions of traditional sweetmeats
such as gulab jamuns. A video presentation on making a healthier
version of this irresistible treat is still available on the SKA Facebook
page.
These physical activities and events that encourage a healthy
lifestyle while promoting aspects of Punjabi culture continue
to draw much enthusiasm and participation by the members of
the Ladies Wing. Given the subscription to these activities by its
members, SKA is committed to allocating more resources to such
activities and platforms that promote and support an active lifestyle,
and the physical and mental health of members of the Ladies Wing.

Media and Communications Committee
SKA realised the importance of creating various types of content to
engage our members during the pandemic and we continued with
such efforts through the Media and Communications Committee in
2021.
The tri-annual newsletter, SKA News, continued to be well
received by the members. Since its beginning, SKA’s members have
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complimented the Committee for its presentation and impressive
content, which keeps them abreast of the latest happening at the
Association.
A major initiative taken by the Committee is to reduce the carbon
footprint and to do our part for the environment. In this respect,
we have been reaching out and urging members to opt for online communications with the Association. Last year, we also
started sending promotional mailers via emails. The Membership
Committee made a concerted effort to reach out and collect email
addresses, among others, from the members.
At the same time, we enhanced our social media efforts, placing
considerable attention on the website, Facebook page and
Instagram account. In 2021, our social media platforms had close
to 6,000 followers. To further enhance our on-line communications
with the members, the Committee embarked on a revamp of the
website in October 2021. SKA’s members can soon look forward to a
more current, modish and friendly website.
The Committee saw to fruition the launch of a SKA 90th anniversary
celebrations microsite, an extensive effort to share SKA’s history
with the wider Singapore society and within the community to
document and create awareness of the contributions made by
Sikhs in Singapore. The interactive site can still be accessed at
www.SKA90.com and we encourage as many of you to pen your
thoughts, well-wishes and most importantly aspirations for SKA
and, by extension, the Sikh community in Singapore. The microsite is
complemented by a 90th anniversary timeline wall at the new foyer
at the SKA premises, developed to be interactive as well, and to
reflect the many milestones of the Association through nine decades
of its history.

SEWA Healthcare
SEWA Healthcare, the latest and youngest addition to SKA’s
Committees, actively focused on the medical, physical and mental
well-being of Singaporeans is much valued in the local environment.
In 2021, the SEWA Healthcare team was kept busy with a number
of health screening exercises across the island. It started with
the Health Mela at SKA where it organised a series of seminars
by professionals from the medical fraternity and provided
complimentary health screening for all. These were followed by
health screening exercises at Our Tampines Hub, Bukit Batok East
Community Club, Central Sikh Temple and Pasir Ris Elias Community
Club.
SEWA Healthcare’s partnership, particularly with Diabetes
Singapore, has been extremely useful and relevant. Their combined
efforts enabled them to reach out to more than 1,300 people across
Singapore last year.

Sports Committee
Sports activities and achievements continued to be a mainstay at
SKA in 2021. In many ways, members of the Committee and our
athletes paved the way to a return to normalcy as restrictions eased
and more of them came back to participate in sporting activities at
the SKA premises.
During this period, with limited capacity for sports, given the
prevailing COVID-19 guidelines and measures, the Committee
took the opportunity to focus and steer sports at the Association
towards greater professionalism. One of the ways was to improve
some of the administrative aspects of organising sporting activities
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and athletics. The Committee also found it important and necessary
to recognise the respective sports coaches at SKA through signing
contracts and to putting on record their invaluable contributions
to sporting activities and achievements at the Association. The
coaches were also engaged and involved in a crucial feedback
exercise to identify and work with the Committee on any difficulties
encountered in training with COVID-19 measures in place. This was
done in the spirit to see how, together with SKA, these challenges
could be overcome as well as to ensure sufficient attention is
given to the various sports teams to continue to strive for sporting
excellence.
The sports carnival has been omnipresent at every Vesakhi Mela. In
2021, in spite of the changed format of the fair, the Committee was
highly active in organising several non-competitive matches as well
as a deadlift challenge for different ages and both genders. Several
months later, the Committee organised a sports festival to celebrate
National Day. The festival comprised football, hockey, netball and
badminton.
During the year, the Committee was highly enterprising in its
efforts to address the challenges posed by the pandemic. With full
participation in sporting competitions continuing to be a challenge,
the Committee resorted to mini tournaments for hockey and football.
It organised two versus two competitions independently as well as
in partnership with other sporting clubs.

Veterans Wing
The Veterans Wing has been an important and necessary addition
to the SKA suite of programmes for both members and the wider
community. It was able to organise several events in 2021. The
Veterans Wing was able to put together an interest group of brisk
walkers and organised sessions for them during the Vesakhi Mela
and National Day celebrations. The veterans also shared their desire
and keen interest to start weekly knock-around hockey sessions
which the Committee was able to put together at the Premier Pitch.
We can look forward to many exciting plans and developments for
the Veterans Wing and its members, based on all the ideas and
feedback that was gathered in 2021. Some of these include balut,
lawn bowls, darts and badminton sessions. The Committee remains
driven and energised by the enthusiasm of the veteran members it
was able to engage meaningfully last year.

Young Khalsa
Young Khalsa was acutely aware of the challenges and impact to
young children from the COVID-19 pandemic. Therefore, many of its
efforts included providing and organising opportunities for children
to socialise and interact with friends in the community. One of the
ways the Committee was able to do so was through its storytelling
sessions on the last Sunday of each month. Theme based and
culturally Punjabi books were curated and chosen every month for
the children to relate and for them to share their thoughts on these
stories.
The Committee also partnered with Mental ACT, a group of activists
focusing on creating more mental health awareness in the Indian
community through engagements and workshops. Volunteers of
Mental ACT organised workshops for parents with young children
to equip them with the knowledge and skills to identify emotional
or mental distress in their children. There were also workshops on
other themes such as esteem and bullying.
For the Young Khalsa Committee and children in the community,
Vesakhi celebrations were a highlight as the team took the lead to

host a series of activities as part of the celebrations. Children in
the community had the opportunity to build dhols, learn about the
history of the community and attend an upbeat and lively bhangra
workshop.

Update on Membership
The success of any organisation, among others, is measured by its
ability to attract new members and for them to avail themselves
to the diverse range of programmes being offered. It would be
an understatement to say that the COVID-19 pandemic, since its
outbreak, has been a bane for SKA in our efforts to bring on board
more members to the Association.
In spite of the challenges, the Membership Committee worked
judiciously to increase SKA’s membership last year. In addition to
embarking on membership promotion during the Vesakhi period, the
Committee relied on SKA’s social media platforms and referrals by
the MC members to enhance SKA’s membership. The Committee’s
effort met with considerable success. In 2021, we had 28 new ‘Life’
and ‘Associate Life’ members. This represented an increase of nine
new members over the previous year.
We expect the situation to improve in the coming year as we adapt
to the new normal. We are optimistic of significantly increasing
the Association’s membership with several planned promotional
initiatives and proposed amendments to membership during the
AGM in 2022, We look forward the members’ support in reaching
out and encouraging family, relatives and friends to be part of SKA.

Partnerships and Collaboration
SKA places considerable importance on partnerships. These not
only increase knowledge and expertise, but also enhance finite
resources to do more and reach a wider audience. At the same time,
partnerships allow all the partnering organisations to gain mutual
benefits.
The COVID-19 pandemic made it even more necessary for SKA
to forge partnerships, given the challenges of organising events
and activities and reaching out to audiences. We worked with
several institutions within the Sikh community as well as forged
partnerships with a number of external organisations in 2021 across
a range of focus areas.
Through collaborations with our partners, SKA was able to
participate in a cha chat with the Indian Muslim Professionals,
Indian cultural festival in Little India, conversations on women
development, dialogue sessions, panel discussions and seminars
on topical issues, movie screening, Indian institution membership
and network partnership, entrepreneurship competition and the Sikh
graduate tea reception, among others.
The Association was also part of a broader national effort and
special exhibition titled ‘Sikhs in Singapore – A Story Untold’, put
together and officially launched in 2021 by the Indian Heritage
Centre. SKA is grateful that it could be a part of creating awareness
to local and foreign visitors to Singapore on the history, culture and
the many contributions of the Sikhs to Singapore.
In conclusion, the pace of activities in 2021 steadily increased at
the Association. The Committees will continue to explore ways
and new opportunities, and, most importantly, consult its various
stakeholders on how it can further enhance its many offerings in
the next year and beyond. We look forward to working closely and
together with you to achieve more at the Association.
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Committees and
Sub-Committees
While the Management Committee is responsible for the overall management of SKA, it is well supported by several Committees and Sub-committees.
Led by MC members, these Committees and Sub-committees comprise members from different backgrounds and walks but all with the common desire
to want to be involved in the betterment of the Association.
These Committees and Sub-committees meet regularly to identify areas in which they can contribute as well as to work on specific projects and
programmes. Through these Committees and Sub-committees, the MC can work beyond its limited resources to do much more for SKA’s members.
Presently, there are 13 Committees and Sub-committees at the Association.
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Culture
andand
Social
Culture
Social
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Advisor

Mr Sarabjeet Singh

Chairperson

Mr Gursewak Singh Gill

Members

Mr Paul Veer Singh
Mr Rajvinder Singh
Ms Trishal Kaur
Mr Harkrishan Singh Bajaj

Administration Representatives

Mr Gurbachan Singh
Ms Sukhwender Kaur
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Editorial
andand
Publications
Editorial
Publications
Advisor

Mr Hernaikh Singh

Chairperson

Mr Ravinderpal Singh

Members

Mr Jagjit Singh Sandhu
Mr Baldev Singh s/o Avatar Singh
Ms Harpreet Kaur

Administration Representative
Ms Tsasikala
				
Education
Education
Advisor

Mr Sarabjeet Singh

Chairperson

Mr Kuldip Singh Sandhu

Members

Mr Malvinder Singh Bandal
Mr Dilbagh Singh
Mr Sarban Singh
Mr Nirmal Singh Rode
Mr Parwinder Singh Grewal

Kindergarten Representative

Mdm Santi Devi

Financial
Management
Financial
Management
Advisor

Mr Hernaikh Singh

Chairperson

Ms Ezrynn Kaur Charl

Members

Mr Gurpreet Singh Rikhraj
Mr Baldev Singh s/o Avatar Singh

Administration Representatives

Ms Sukhwender Kaur
Ms Tsasikala

House
House
Advisor

Mr Sarjit Singh s/o Udam Singh

Chairperson

Mr Tejinderdeb Singh Gill

Members

Mr Surindar Singh
Mr Baldev Singh s/o Avatar Singh
Mr Hernaikh Singh

Administration Representatives

Mr Gurbachan Singh
Ms Sukhwender Kaur

Ladies
Wing
Ladies
Wing
Advisor

Mr Sarabjeet Singh

Chairperson

Ms Harbinder Kaur

Deputy Chairperson

Ms Lela Kaur

Secretary

Ms Berinderjeet Kaur

Treasurer

Ms Harbans Kaur
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Members

Ms Manjeet Kaur
Ms Mindar Kaur
Ms Malkit Kaur
Ms Gurmit Kaur
Ms Harsharan Kaur Basant

Administration Representatives

Ms Sukhwender Kaur
Ms V Gayadri

Media
and
Corporate
Communications
Media
and
Corporate
Communications
Advisor

Mr Hernaikh Singh

Chairperson

Mr Ravinderpal Singh

Members

Mr Baldev Singh s/o Avatar Singh
Ms Harpreet Kaur
Mr Simarnirvair Singh
Ms Resvin Kaur

Administration Representatives

Ms Tsasikala
Ms V Gayadri

Membership
Membership
Advisor

Mr Hernaikh Singh

Chairperson

Mr Surindar Singh

Members

Mr Tarlok Singh
Mr Prem Singh
Ms Harveen Kaur
Mr Ravinderpal Singh
Mr Sukvinder Singh Sandhu
Ms Harsharan Kaur Basant
Mr H S Teji

Administration Representatives

Ms V Gayadri
Ms Tsasikala

SEWA
Healthcare
SEWA
Healthcare
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Advisor

Mr Hernaikh Singh

Chairperson

Mr Satyaprakash Tiwari

Vice Chairperson

Dr Gurpal Singh
Ms Narindarjeet Kaur

Secretary

Ms Gormit Kaur

Assistant Secretary

Ms Manprit Kaur

Treasurer

Ms Bhavana Rao

Assistant Treasurer

Ms Manjit Kaur

Members

Ms Arvinder Kaur
Ms Gurdev Kaur
Ms Jaspreet Kaur
Ms Kaldip Kaur Deol
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Ms Kowsula Kaur Patel
Ms Malkit Kaur Dhaliwal
Mr Prem Singh
Ms Rusvinder Kaur
Dr Trishpal Kaur Dhaliwal
Administration Representatives

Mr Gurbachan Singh
Ms Tsasikala

Sports
Sports
Advisors

Mr Sarjit Singh s/o Udam Singh
Dr Kong Chee Seng

Chairperson

Mr Tarlok Singh

Secretary

Mr Prem Singh

Treasurer

Mr Baldev Singh s/o Avatar Singh

Members

Mr Sukvinder Singh Sandhu
Ms Harvender Kaur
Ms Shasha
Mr Dalvinder Singh
Mr Iqbal Singh
Mr Prekash Singh

Administration Representatives

Mr Gurbachan Singh
Ms V Gayadri

Veterans
Wing
Veterans
Wing
Advisors

Mr Sarjit Singh s/o Udam Singh
Mr Prem Singh

Chairperson

Mr Sukvinder Singh Sandhu

Deputy Chairperson

Mr Jaswant Singh

Members

Badminton
Mr Dalvinder Singh
Mr Kirpal Singh
Football
Mr Sirranjit Singh
Mr Talvinder Singh
Netball
Ms Amarjeet Kaur
Ms Kiran Kaur
Ladies Wing
Ms Manjeet Kaur
Ms Harbinder Kaur
Hockey
Mr Joginder Singh
Mr Belvinder Singh
Balut
Mr Prekash Singh
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Pool
Mr Ravinder Singh
Captain (Retired) Karam Singh
Social and Culture
Mr Sewak Singh
Brisk Walking, Lawn Bowling and Darts
Mr Sukvinder Singh Sandhu
Mr Prem Singh
Administration Representatives

Mr Gurbachan Singh
Ms V Gayadri

Young
YoungKhalsa
Khalsa
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Advisor

Mr Sarabjeet Singh

Chairperson

Ms Harveen Kaur

Members

Ms Kaveeta Sandhu
Ms Simran Kaur Sidhu
Ms Sangeeta Kaur
Ms Kamal Joti Kaur
Ms Rakvinder Kaur Khare
Ms Sukhwinder Kaur
Ms Chaman Kaur Sidhu

Administration Representatives

Ms Tsasikala
Ms Sukhwender Kaur
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Membership Benefits
•

Public Lectures and Talks: These highly informative
sessions focus on a diverse range of local, regional and global
issues and developments, which are presented by experts in
their respective fields.

•

Family-focussed Events: These fun and educational activities
are aimed at engaging families and encourage bonding time
between parents and their children. Some of these events
include storytelling sessions and movie screenings.

Booking of Function Halls

•

SKA members enjoy preferential rates when booking the function
halls at the Association. The premises are conducive for the
organisation of large-scale functions like weddings to small and
intimate events such as birthday celebrations. The rates are
extremely competitive.

Enrichment Programmes: These activities include health
talks, professional presentations and panel discussions to
allow SKA’s members to focus on their mental, emotional and
professional developments.

Merchant Discount Programme

Despite the challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021,
the Membership Committee continued to actively enhance the
benefits for our members. This is part of our continuous effort to
ensure that SKA continues to be a lively organisation centred on the
interests of its members.
SKA members enjoy an exclusive range of benefits across social,
networking, cultural, sporting and educational activities and
programmes.

Board Room
SKA’s board room is a purpose-built corporate meeting room with a
25-person seating capacity. Fully equipped with wi-fi, a digital hybrid
board, a projector and a sound system complete with microphones,
the board room fulfils corporate needs at an affordable rate.

Dance Studio
With a space of or 540 square feet, the SKA dance studio, which is
available at preferential rates for members, can be used for a variety
of purposes, including auditions, dance and yoga classes and fitness
sessions, among others. It is also ideal for video and film shoots,
scaled stills photography, rehearsals and pre-production activities.

Discounts at In-house Establishments
SKA’s members are offered attractive discounts at SKA’s in-house
establishments, namely, the restaurant, lounge, gymnasium and
futsal courts, as well as exclusivity at the members’ lounge.

Launched in 2018, the Merchant Discount Programme provides
SKA’s members with discounts and benefits at a select group of
establishments across Singapore. These include sports clubs and
outlets, dining and entertainment establishments as well as beauty
and healthcare centres, among others.
We are constantly looking to enhance this programme and are
actively on the search for new partners to join the programme for
SKA’s members to enjoy further benefits.

Publications and Social Media Outreach
SKA News is our tri-annual newsletter and is SKA’s regular media
and communications initiative for the members. It features news
and updates on events at SKA as well as happenings within the
community and internationally. In addition, members can advertise
on the various SKA platforms.
At the same time, SKA is regularly engaged with members on social
media platforms, namely, Facebook and Instagram.

Events and Activities

Special Parking Rates

The Association organises a wide range of events and activities, both
independently and in partnership with like-minded organisations.
These include:

SKA’s members that have registered their vehicles with the
Administration Office enjoy special parking rates at SKA’s car park.

•

Vesakhi Mela: This two-day social, cultural and sporting
extravaganza is held annually in conjunction with Vesakhi,
with participants and attendees of different ethnicities, ages
and backgrounds. Due to the restrictions imposed during the
COVID-19 pandemic, the activities for the Mela for 2021 were
spread over three days with nine events.

•

Diwali Nite: This year-end event is a major highlight on SKA’s
calendar to celebrate Diwali. In 2021, Diwali Nite was held
in Mogul Mahal Restaurant in a smaller and more intimate
capacity in line with COVID-19 restrictions.

Singapore Khalsa Association

Networking and Social Events: SKA’s members enjoy
privileged access or discounted fees for members’ nights,
celebratory receptions and networking sessions and functions.

2 Tessensohn Road, Singapore 217646
Telephone: 62981230 I 62986206
Email: info@singaporekhalsa.org.sg

•
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category, this was the highest number of new members in the last
five years. Going forward, the target of the Membership Committee
is to increase membership in all categories, particularly to double
the number of new members joining the ‘Life’ category from that
in 2021 while encouraging membership among younger Sikhs and
women.

In 2021, the continued restrictions imposed by the authorities in
light of the COVID-19 pandemic allowed for few in-person events
and limited activities by the Membership Committee relating to
promotional membership drive. Despite these challenges, the
Membership Committee, working closely with the Management
Committee (MC), continued its efforts to grow the membership
and focused particularly on the potential benefits enjoyed by SKA’s
members.

In 2021, the SKA membership stood at 2,126 ‘Life’ members. These
comprised 1,683 ‘Life’ members and 182 ‘Associate Life’ members.
The rest were ‘Associate’, ‘Junior’ and ‘Sports’ members.

In 2021, 20 new ‘Life’ members and eight new ‘Associate Life’
members joined the Association. In the ‘Associate Life’ membership

‘Life’ Membership Growth (2016-2021)
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Life Membership Promotion

Membership Benefits

The Membership Committee launched its promotion of ‘Life’
membership during the Vesakhi Mela in April 2021. Each new
member, who joined SKA as a ‘Life’ member, received a $50 gift
voucher. Of the 20 new ‘Life’ members, 10 joined SKA during the
promotional campaign, thus indicating the success of the effort by
the Membership Committee.

SKA’s members enjoy an exclusive range of benefits across a
multitude of social, networking, cultural, sporting and educational
activities and programmes. In addition to participating in events
organised by the Association, SKA’s members enjoy a range of
exclusive benefits. These benefits are presented under the section
on ‘SKA’s Membership Benefits’.

In our effort to attract more members, ‘Life’ members are able to
pay their membership fee through several instalments. Furthermore,
‘Junior’ and ‘Sports’ members who qualify to become ‘Life’
or ‘Associate Life’ members are encouraged to convert their
membership to ‘Life’ or ‘Associate Life’ with the attractive one-time
discounted membership fee of up to 70 percent, as per terms and
conditions of the membership application.

The MC and the Membership Committee are regularly exploring
possible ways of partnering with the nearby associations and clubs
to provide expanded facilities and benefits for SKA’s members.

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION

Growing SKA’s Membership
The Membership Committee has been enhancing the range and
diversity of SKA’s membership categories. These include attracting

ska’s Membership Development

new members and increasing the member participation in SKA’s
activities and programmes. The changes were proposed at the
75th Annual General Meeting (AGM) in September 2021. However,
the members did not approve these amendments. The proposed
changes included:
•

Making the ‘Life’ membership transferable to the ‘Life’
member’s immediate family member.

•

Offering ‘Silver’ (Veterans) membership for applicants aged 55
years and above, with a ‘Silver Life’ category for Sikhs and a
‘Silver Life Associate’ category for non-Sikhs.

•

Introducing ‘Supplementary’ membership for ‘Life’ members’
legal spouses aged 21 years and above.

•

Proposing the age of ‘Sports’ members to be limited to 35
years.

•

Offering ‘Junior’ membership to non-Sikhs, which would allow
them to participate in relevant SKA’s activities.

The MC and Membership Committee strongly believe that these
changes will help to expand SKA’s membership and make the
Association inclusive and accessible to a broader and more diverse
group of members.
The Membership Committee plans to seek the approval for these
proposed changes from SKA’s members at the next AGM in 2022.

National Day Celebrations
In 2021, Singapore marked the 56th independence day with a scaleddown celebration due to the measures put in place to control the
spread of COVID-19. The full-scale National Day Parade and
celebration took place on 21 August 2021.
Similarly, SKA took the opportunity to mark this important occasion
in its own special way on 21 August 2021 through a series of social,
health-related and sporting activities. These included sporting
matches (football, hockey, netball and badminton), brisk walking, a
cha session and a mass bhangra dance.
On the same evening, SKA held a National Day celebratory dinner,
which saw members and guests enjoying a sit-down meal on SKA’s
rooftop. Given the COVID-19 measures, the event was limited to
a small group of attendees who savoured the delicious food and
ambience. To mark the occasion, the attendees recited the Singapore
Pledge and sang the National Anthem.

Engagement with the Members
In 2021, the Membership Committee continued to reach out to SKA’s
members to ensure that their records were complete and up to date.
We have also been collecting the email addresses of SKA’s members
so that we can move towards on-line engagement with them. We
believe this will lead to enhanced communications and participation
from SKA’s members in the various programmes and initiatives, as
well as when soliciting feedback from the members.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

23

SKA’s Committee Updates

Building and
Facilities
Committee
Whilst the COVID-19 pandemic continued to cause significant
disruption in terms of SKA’s revenue, with financial resilience
and astute budgetary control, the Association embarked on and
completed several improvement projects in 2021.
The guiding principle was to enhance the Association’s infrastructure,
ensure convenience and comfort for our members with the eventual
aim of ultimately increasing patronage.

Repair Project
Despite the pandemic’s ongoing reverberations, the renovation
project, which encompassed repairing the water seepages,
rendering cracks and de-bonded areas, replacing corroded fixtures
and fittings, cladding rectifications and other corrective repairs,
was successfully completed in June 2021. With these repairs and a
fresh coat of paint, the Management Committee (MC) is cautiously
optimistic that this would address the longstanding water seepage
issues.
As part of the repair project, the appointed contractor has created
a pebble-wash area which will complement the operations of the
upcoming lounge. With unobstructed views of the Balestier plains,
members can choose to either dine alfresco or play host and hold
events for near and dear ones under the starry night skies.

New Foyer Area
Recognising that first impressions count, members and visitors can
look forward to a stunning new foyer with comfortable upholstered
furniture. Apart from reading the newspapers and subscription
magazines – which have been made available at the foyer in the
mini-shelves – the members can carry on conversations, as well as
take advantage of the standing height worktables or simply choose
to lay back and relax.
The members and visitors are also encouraged to visit the new
trophy case displaying the Association’s sporting trophies,
memorabilia and plaques – a reflection of the Association’s status
as a premier sporting organisation. While there, they can find out
more about SKA on the milestone wall. They simply need to scan
the QR codes to watch video presentations of the different eras in
the Association’s history.

Newly Renovated Board Room
The existing board room has been modernised, resulting in its
new finishes, furniture, accent lighting and improved information
technology and audio-visual capabilities with an overall capacity
for up to 50 people. With highly customisable system furniture
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and high-speed internet connection, the MC has repositioned the
Association as a venue provider for executive meetings, seminars
and corporate events to develop an additional revenue stream.

location is closest to the sports facilities and is easily accessible for
sports users. This will, therefore, discourage sports users to utilise
the toilets within the Association’s premises.

Office Revamp with a Surveillance Control Room

The revamped changing room is meant to be used alternately
between the Association’s male and female sport teams and to that
end, clear signage is displayed to alert users to this arrangement.
To ensure continued privacy of users, privacy screens will soon be
installed at the entry point.

Office trends come and go, but one thing that does not change
is the impact of the office environment on the employees’
performance and productivity. Bearing that in mind and with inputs
from the Association’s employees, the MC successfully completed
a comprehensive interior retrofit of the office with new lighting,
increased ergonomically crafted workstations and office equipment.
The new office is separated from a equally visually engaging and
welcoming reception area with an access control system.
To implement and enforce security measures, particularly in view of
the prevailing safe management measures, and to deter trespassing,
a new security counter and surveillance control room have been
erected. The Association’s security personnel can now monitor the
entire network of closed-circuit televisions efficiently and they are
readily approachable in an emergency.

Improved Facilities for the Sportspersons
To enhance the experience of the Association’s sports facilities,
one of the existing toilets (adjacent to the loading bay) has been
converted into changing rooms with shower facilities. The selected

Additionally, the pre-existing washing point has been upgraded with
a newly erected planter box, water point and drainage for improved
convenience.

Safety a Key Consideration
Last but not the least, the safety of the members and visitors remain
the MC’s paramount concern. To that end, the MC, as part of the
relocation of Khalsa Kindergarten from its Beatty Road campus to
the Association’s premises, has installed perimeter fencing on the
rooftop. The selected design is innovative in that it balances safety
while encouraging airflow circulation without compromising on its
visual appeal.
The Committee hopes that the members will continue to support and
encourage the MC and will appreciate its efforts to present SKA as
a pleasant, welcoming and vibrant association.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

25

SKA’s Committee Updates

Cultural
and Social
Committee
Cultural and social activities are important elements of SKA’s regular
offerings to the members. In 2021, the Cultural and Social Committee
organised several activities, including the customary Vesakhi Mela
and Diwali function as well as recently introduced activities such as
the National Day Observance and Dialogue session and the bhangra,
dhol and Bollywood dance classes, among others.
Through these efforts, the Committee played the important role of
highlighting the Sikh community’s rich culture, tradition and heritage
to the wider community.

Taekwondo Classes
Started in 2018, the taekwondo classes have been going strong.
The trainees have been going through the routine on Sunday
afternoons under the eagle-eye of the highly qualified senior
instructor, Mr Virender Singh. Several parents have also joined the
class to keep their children company and adopt a new means of
exercise for themselves.

Bollybeats Dance Classes
In February 2021, SKA began an eight-week Bollybeats dance class.
This fitness class has gained popularity in Singapore, and we were
pleased to be able to offer this class at the Association.
Bollybeats is a fusion of cardio and aerobic dance that blends well
with Bollywood music. This Bollywood fitness programme helped
the participants mould their bodies while they groove to the tunes of
Hindi Bollywood music.

Dhol Classes
Internationally renowned Lightning Dholi Rajay began his third run
of classes at SKA in March 2021. The classes witnessed Rajay
sharing the art of playing the dhol with SKA’s members and the
wider community.
During the ‘Beginner’ classes, Rajay taught the students how to
co-ordinate their hands to play in synchronisation and master up to
six different beats with different beat counts. Indeed, the students
felt accomplished at the end of the sessions and walked away with
the confidence to perform dhol beats and overcome their fear of
performing in front of an audience.

Vesakhi Mela
In 2021, the Vesakhi Mela returned to the Association, but with a
difference. Instead of the usual two-day schedule, SKA organised
a series of social, cultural, sporting and health-focussed activities
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over three days from 30 April 2021. The activities included chair
yoga, children’s programme, deadlift challenge, brisk walking, movie
screening and sporting activities. These events are covered in the
various Committees’ sections in this Annual Report.
Themed ‘Celebrating 90 Years of Community Development’, in line
with SKA’s 90th anniversary, the event reached out to Singaporeans,
new citizens and foreigners from different ethnic groups, ages
and backgrounds. The participating teams in the various activities
included individuals from diverse ethnic groups.

On 1 May 2021, SKA partnered the Singapore Sikh Education
Foundation to organise the Punjabi Poetry Competition. The event
witnessed the recital of 20 poetries, which highlighted that the
Punjabi language, as a medium of expression, is still strong in our
community.
On the same day, we organised a bhangra dance class for participants
of all ages. The bhangra trainer guided the attendees through the
various bhangra steps. Everyone had an impressive workout.

National Day Observance Ceremony and Dialogue
Session
On 7 August 2021, SKA, its members and the Sikh community came
together to organise an on-line National Day Observance Ceremony.
Close to 100 participants attended the event.
Mr Desmond Tan, Minister of State for Home Affairs and
Sustainability and the Environment, graced the ceremony. He joined
the participants in singing the National Anthem and reciting the
National Pledge.
Mr Tan also participated in a dialogue session with the participants
on ‘Singapore turns 56: Hopes and Aspirations of a Nation’. The
discussions focused on Singapore’s integration efforts, the creation
of platforms and spaces for open dialogue on race and religion,
leadership succession, and economic priorities for Singapore,
among others.

Diwali Fiesta
During the Mela, the Cultural and Social Committee took the lead in
organising the Bollybeat and bhangra dance classes and the Punjabi
Poetry Competition.
The Bollybeat classes also took place on 30 April 2021. The class
combined cardio and aerobic dances that blend well with Bollywood
music. The participants had fun trying out the fusion class to the
tune of Bollywood music.

Following a hiatus of a year due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
SKA organised a Diwali dinner for its members and guests on 27
November 2021. The event saw close to 90 attendees enjoying a
pleasant evening at Moghul Mahal Restaurant.
During the evening fiesta, several silent lucky draws were held.
There were great prizes for the lucky draw and best dressed male
and female guests segments. Prizes were given to the winners at
their tables. The guests also enjoyed the sumptuous spread of North
Indian delicacies for dinner at their respective tables.
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Education
Committee
The COVID-19 also presented significant challenges to the
Education Committee in its management and operations of Khalsa
Kindergarten. The Committee responded admirably to the difficult
situation to ensure that the kindergarten continued to function
optimally within the safe management measures instituted by the
Singapore government and the Ministry of Education (MOE).
In addition to addressing the challenges posed by the pandemic, the
Committee worked tirelessly on the relocation of the kindergarten to
the Association’s premises. It kept to the timelines and ensured that
the kindergarten was ready to receive the teachers and pupils at the
start of the new year.

Relocation to New Premises
The relocation of Khalsa Kindergarten from Beatty Road became
necessary after significant structural cracks emerged in 2019 and
2020. Repairs required considerable funds which the landlord was
not keen to incur, given that the Singapore Land Authority had
indicated its decision to acquire the land at the end of 2023.
Following the approval of the relocation budget by the members
at the last Annual General Meeting, the Khalsa Kindergarten
Relocation Committee began work on the relocation project. The
project was completed within the allocated budget.
The establishment of the kindergarten on SKA’s fifth floor is a
significant milestone for the Association. In addition to enhancing
SKA’s revenue, the kindergarten’s location at Tessensohn Road will
provide other potential spill-over benefits such as the parents hiring
the function halls, booking the futsal courts and patronising the
restaurant.
The kindergarten is well designed and with its specially equipped
learning spaces, will greatly enhance the learning experience of the
pupils. A rooftop play area has also been created to cater for the
physical development of the students. The new kindergarten is more
accessible, with the nearest train station a few hundred metres
away. At the same time, there are more supporting spaces in the
building, which are accessible to the teaching staff and parents, for
example, meeting rooms, staff area and waiting area. This has the
potential of increasing enrolment in the coming years.
On 31 December 2021, members of SKA’s Management Committee
and the kindergarten relocation team, principals and teachers from
Khalsa Kindergarten and the Singapore Sikh Education Foundation
came together for a prayer ceremony at the kindergarten.
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Extension of Operating Licence
Khalsa Kindergarten also succeeded in acquiring an extension of the
operating licence from MOE from 2021 to 2024, in addition to the
existing Singapore Preschool Accreditation Framework accreditation
by the Early Childhood Development Agency.
The kindergarten’s teachers were also nominated by the management
to attend relevant courses and development programmes to upgrade
themselves and keep their knowledge and skills current and at the
optimal level.

Challenges due to COVID-19

During the HBL period, the teachers and staff patiently attended to
many calls from the parents and pupils regarding log-in issues. They
meticulously oversaw the returning of all the learning materials to
the pupils while the latter remained at home. At the same time, the
kindergarten carried out many rounds of cleaning and sanitisation to
keep the school a safe and hygienic place.

Graduation Ceremony
Khalsa Kindergarten held its K2 graduation ceremony on 30 October
2021. SKA’s Vice-President, Mr Sarabjeet Singh, was the Guest-ofHonour for the ceremony.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic compelled the kindergarten
to expeditiously adjust to the challenges posed by the virus and
adapt to the new normal.

In view of the COVID-19 restrictions and safe management measures
in place, the event witnessed the in-person presence of the pupils
and teachers. Parents, family members and friends participated in
the event via the online platform.

The kindergarten held its orientation with the parents via Zoom
instead of conventional face-to-face meetings. At all times, the staff
were mindful about complying with the safe management measures
and protocols .

During the event, Mr Sarabjeet presented certificates to 99
graduating pupils from five classes. Then he witnessed some
entertaining performances by the pupils.

Similarly, the pupils also diligently practised measures such as
social distancing during arrival and dismissal times and sanitising
themselves before entering their classrooms. The teachers also took
the initiative to clean and sanitise the classroom on a daily basis, in
addition to the regular sanitising by the cleaning staff.

Home-based Learning
When MOE announced home-based learning (HBL) on 18 September
2021 to better protect younger children who are not yet medically
eligible for vaccination, the kindergarten’s teachers and staff
adapted swiftly to prepare the necessary materials for the HBL.
Within a very short span of time, Khalsa Kindergarten’s teachers
learnt to connect with the pupils in a very different environment.
They collaboratively learnt new tools, adapted their teaching
strategies and innovated with feedback approaches.

Year-end Concert
The kindergarten organised its year-end concert on 13 November
2021. The event included performances by the pupils from the
nursery and K1 classes. The finale saw the teachers joining the
children in a dance performance.
The concert was streamed via the kindergartens’ website and close
to 200 parents logged in to view the performances live.
With the country slowly returning to normalcy, Khalsa Kindergarten
hopes to resume its usual operations next year. At the same time,
with the completion of the relocation project, the teaching and
administrative staff as well as the parents and pupils can look
forward to being part of the kindergarten at its new premises.
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Ladies Wing
The year 2021 was a challenging one due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Nevertheless, whilst adhering to safe distancing measures in place,
the Ladies Wing continued with its mission and objectives. It focused
on organising events that revolved around the theme of ‘People’.
The Ladies Wing leveraged on networking platforms for a wider
engagement with Sikh women in Singapore, consequently
increasing awareness and understanding amongst them on the
value of exercise, health and active ageing, the gift of providing
for the less privileged women in society, and Punjabi heritage and
culture.

Lohri Celebrations
The Lohri celebrations on 9 January 2021 witnessed 100 ladies
coming together to celebrate an important occasion on the Sikh
community’s calendar and spread the joy of newly married couples
and newborn babies. Due to the COVID-19 restrictions, Lohri
had to be organised a little differently and SKA was not able to
accommodate the 600-odd ladies it traditionally had for this event.
However, the Ladies Wing ensured the meaning and significance
of this cultural festival was not lost, especially on the younger
generation.
There were no live performances or the customary Lohri bonfire.
However, the attendees certainly had an interesting afternoon. They
enjoyed the traditional food such as gajak and jaggery as well as
popcorn, which was served to each table.
The Ladies Wing innovated and streamed giddha performances
along with a slide presentation of newborn babies and newly
married couples.

International Women’s Day Celebrations
The Ladies Wing organised a morning walk at Jurassic Mile to mark
the International Women’s Day on 13 March 2021.
The celebration was toned down compared to previous years due
to the COVID-19 restrictions and safe distancing measures in place.
Under strict observations of the safe management measures, the
Ladies Wing arranged for the maximum number of ladies on two
buses for this trip. The timing of the buses was staggered to better
manage the crowd.
Following an hour’s walk, the ladies were treated to a sumptuous
lunch and fruits at SKA. Then they participated in fun-filled games
such as Bingo and jigsaw puzzle. They ended the event with a cup of
masala chai and some delicious snacks.

Chair Yoga Classes
On 1 April 2022, the Ladies Wing began its first chair yoga module
for the year. It comprised an hour’s lesson per week which was
spread over 10 weeks. This flagship event of the Ladies Wing saw
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40 participants, who were divided into groups of eight following the
safe management measures.
After the previous sessions of chair yoga were cancelled due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, the ladies were delighted to be able to attend
their weekly sessions of chair yoga once again.

Vesakhi Mela: Chair Yoga Mass Participation
During the Vesakhi Mela, the Ladies Wing took the lead in organising
a mass chair yoga session on 30 April 2021. Seventy senior ladies
attended the session.
The event began with a talk on the benefits of yoga by one of
the Ladies Wing’s Committee member, Ms Gurmit Kaur. This was
followed by an hour of chair yoga and breathing exercises led by
Master Dev Kapil from One Wellness Fitness Club.

Teeyan Celebrations
The Ladies Wing organised the Teeyan celebrations on 28 August
2021. It was greatly appreciated by the 100 ladies who were part of
the tea-time festivity.
During the event, the Ladies Wing organised several exciting
activities for the attendees, taking into consideration the safe
management measures in place. The activities included a quiz,
complete the song competition and making an image depicting
Teeyan with a representative from each table briefly describing their
images during the show.
The host also kept the attendees engaged with her songs, jokes and
impromptu calls on individuals for contributions, whilst seated at
their respective tables. A sumptuous sit-down high tea added to the
festivities. The Ladies Wing received much complimentary feedback
on a well-organised event.

The ladies were also presented with a goodie bag each at the end
of the event.

Zoom Learning the Punjabi Way
During the COVID-19 outbreak, the Ladies Wing took the initiative to
prepare a couple of video presentations in the Punjabi language on
how to operate Zoom on Android and Apple mobile phones.
The simple step-by-step instructions were aimed at enabling the
seniors learn basic Zoom operations so that they could communicate
with loved ones and friends from the comfort and safety of their
homes as well as participate in webinars and on-line sessions such
as chair yoga and cooking classes.
These videos were uploaded on SKA’s Facebook page in July 2021.

National Day Games: Brisk Walking Session
As part of the National Day Games, the Ladies Wing and the
Veterans Wing worked together to organise a brisk walking and
tea session on 21 August 2021. The event witnessed close to 50
participants comprising primarily the seniors.
Following a three-kilometre walk, the walkers participated in a
National Day cake-cutting ceremony, sponsored by the Ladies Wing.
Then they enjoyed sumptuous tea, sandwiches, samosas, spring
rolls and cake while two senior ladies, who had authored a poem
and a song for the event, read and sang them respectively. Each of
the attendees was also presented a medal for his/her participation.

Making Healthy Gulab Jamun Video Presentation
Traditional sweets like gulab jamuns are irresistible. Often its sugar
content and fat in it makes it undesirable for health reasons.
The Ladies Wing prepared a video presentation on making a healthier
version of the sweetmeat. The two essentials that were kept to a
minimum were sugar and fat. The presentation was uploaded onto
the SKA Facebook page in December 2021.

Appreciation Lunch
The Ladies Wing marked the end of the year for the chair yoga ladies
with a lunch on 23 December 2021.
A total of 37 ladies, comprising the Chair yoga participants,
volunteers and the Ladies Wing members, attended the lunch at
Moghul Mahal Restaurant. The ladies enjoyed the sumptuous
spread amidst the bonding among the ladies at their respective
tables.
The lunch reception was the first post-chair yoga activity after
almost two years. The attendees certainly appreciated the effort of
the Ladies Wing.
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Media and
Communications
Committee
The year 2021 will certainly go down in history as a year of
disruptions. The outbreak of COVID-19 adversely affected various
operations and functions across the world, including Singapore. The
Media and Communications Committee at SKA found innovative
ways to reach out to the members so that they continued to be part
of the events and programmes at the Association.
Through these efforts, SKA was able to actively promote and
highlight its wide array of programmes, activities and offerings last
year.

SKA News
The Association continued with its practice of sending the newsletter
three times a year to all members.
The three issues of SKA News featured many important news
and happenings at the Association. These included the various
events, membership privileges, facility rental, communications with
current and potential tenants, and corporate and human resource
management matters, among others.
Through the newsletter, we also provided a channel for SKA’s
members to convey their thoughts on our programmes and initiatives.

Regular Mailers
In 2021, the Association moved to on-line despatch of flyers on
forthcoming activities and programmes to SKA’s members. This
followed a conscientious and intensive effort to contact and collect
the email addresses and relevant information from the members.
Consequently, SKA was able to reach out to a significant number
of its members, who were kept abreast of developments at the
Association. Thus, a larger number of members were allowed to
participate in the Association’s activities.

Social Media Platforms
SKA has developed an active on-line presence to promote its
activities as well as to serve the interest of its members and the
larger Sikh community.
Through regular posts on on-line platforms such as Facebook and
Instagram in 2021, SKA generated greater awareness and interest
in its events and activities. SKA’s social media following almost
doubled to 6,000 last year. We also regularly received requests
from organisations wanting to partner, collaborate or engage SKA
through their posts on our social media platforms.
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This electronic platform offered news and information to SKA’s
members at their fingertips. It emerged to become an integral and
important part of SKA’s efforts to cater to the social and recreational
needs of its members.

Launch of the 90th Anniversary Microsite
As part of SKA’s 90th anniversary, we launched a microsite on 29
April 2021. Through this initiative, we shared SKA’s history with
the wider Singapore society to create greater awareness of the
contributions of the Sikh community in Singapore. The interactive
site had several exciting platforms that SKA’s members and guests
were able to be a part of.

Installation of a Timeline Wall
In addition to the microsite, we put together SKA’s 90-year timeline
on 20 June 2021. Located on the wall at the foyer, this timeline wall
presents the milestones that took place in SKA’s history since its
inception through an interactive journey.
SKA’s members and visitors simply need to scan the QR codes and
engage in the videos that depict each individual milestone.

Reducing Carbon Footprint
As part of SKA’s efforts to be environmentally friendly and contribute
to a more sustainable future, we embarked on an intensive exercise
to reduce our carbon footprint in several ways.
Among others, we started providing the option for members to opt
out from receiving hardcopy correspondences from SKA in 2021.
This initiative is also geared at reducing publication and printing
costs of the Association.

Website Revamp
On 20 October 2021, we embarked on the effort to revamp SKA’s
website. The effort is aimed at creating an up-to-date, trendy,
user-friendly and easy to navigate website with a member-centric
approach.
Moving forward, we hope to communicate with our members online
as much as possible. The website revamp exercise is expected to be
completed by early next year.

The microsite included a well-wishes board to commemorate SKA’s
anniversary and a photo booth where visitors could view the wellwishes as well as photo shots that members took with their families
and friends. The SKA Journey traced SKA’s history from its inception
to the present day. It comprised an interactive and pictorial journey
of the Association since its formation in 1931.
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SEWA
Healthcare
In December 2020, a group of healthcare professionals in the allied
health, medical and nursing fields from the Sikh and the Indian
diaspora came together to set up SEWA Healthcare to provide
education, counselling and support to people with chronic and
terminal illnesses, as well as their families and the community in
order to empower them to lead quality, healthy and productive lives.
Since its inception, SEWA Healthcare has been busy extending its
services within the Sikh community and to the wider society. It had
a productive and enriching 2021.

Health Mela@SKA
SEWA Healthcare undertook its first major undertaking by organising
the Health Mela at SKA on 31 January 2021. Ms Denise Phua,
Mayor, Central Singapore District, and Member of Parliament, Jalan
Besar GRC, graced the occasion.
The full-day event was in line with SEWA Healthcare’s commitment
to provide educational talks and free health screening services to not
just SKA’s members but also the wider community and society. We
were delighted to have Diabetes Singapore, Lions Club of Singapore
Centennial and Sikh Welfare Council as our partners for the event.
The event included two segments – a series of seminars by
professionals from the medical fraternity and complimentary health
screening.
Three highly qualified speakers made presentations on several
important medical issues. They were Dr Baldev Singh, a renowned
cardiologist; Dr Mukund Doshi, a specialist in internal medicine; and
Ms Rddhi Naidu, Senior Clinical Dietician at Arden Endocrinology
Specialist Clinic.
Close to 160 persons participated in the health screening exercises,
which comprised blood pressure, HbA1c, body mass index and eye
test. There was an enthusiastic response from the participants on
the seminar and the screening.

Passport to Better Health and SEDAP
On 3 and 4 April 2021, SEWA Healthcare collaborated with Diabetes
Singapore to conduct free health screening for members of the
public.
Themed ‘Passport to Better Health and SEDAP (Special Education
in Diabetes and Awareness Programme)’, the event was held at
Our Tampines Hub – Central Plaza. Close to 550 people visited the
booths.
Mr Masagos Zulkifli, Minister for Social and Family Development and
Second Minister for Health, and Ms Rahayu Mahzam, Parliamentary
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Secretary for Health and Communications and Information, graced
the occasion. They were introduced to the different healthcare
booths by the SEWA Healthcare team.

arthritis were organised on 11 April 2021. More than 50 people
attended the talks.

During the two days, the SEWA Healthcare committee members
and volunteers worked professionally, diligently and selflessly to
manage the event. They also ensured that the health screening
booths, which comprised the body mass index measurements, blood
pressure check and blood glucose measurements (HbA1C), were
well manned, and they ensured that the visitors were well taken
care of.

As part of the Sikh community’s Vesakhi celebrations, SEWA
Healthcare set up its health screening booths at the Central Sikh
Temple (CST) from 11 to 13 April 2021.

Vesakhi Health Screening

More than 200 members of the Sikh community had their screening
done during the Vesakhi@CST celebrations.

Health Screening at Pasir Ris Elias Community Club
SEWA Healthcare was part of the community healthcare outreach
efforts at Pasir Ris Elias Community Club on 20 November 2021.
This was part of the ‘War on Diabetes’ efforts for Singaporeans in
the East undertaken by Diabetes Singapore. Close to 400 residents
benefitted from the free diabetic screening.
Mr Teo Chee Hean, Senior Minister and Coordinating Minister
for National Security Organisations, graced the event. He toured
the various health screening stations and met with partners who
worked with Diabetes Singapore on the event.

Bukit Batok East Community Club Health Screening
On 10 and 11 April 2021, SEWA Healthcare’s volunteers conducted
health screening at Bukit Batok East Community Club, in collaboration
with Diabetes Singapore. Approximately 200 people underwent the
screening over the two days.
As part of the programme, health talks on the symptoms and
treatment of arthritis, and joint protection and fall prevention in
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Sports
Committee
Sporting activities have been SKA’s mainstay since its inception.
The Sports Committee promotes and leads the organisation of
sporting activities at the Association. Focusing on competitive and
non-competitive sports, the diverse range of activities includes
badminton, football, golf, hockey, netball and pool. In addition to
providing the platform for the members to enjoy these activities, the
Committee aims to inculcate the important qualities of team spirit,
sportsmanship and camaraderie among the sportspersons at the
Association.
In 2021, the Committee, managers, convenors and coaches worked
hand in hand to strategise, plan and organise an array of sporting
events for SKA’s members. They ideated ways in which the sporting
community could be brought together. On their part, SKA’s sports
members and teams were adaptive, flexible and inventive during the
difficult CVOID-19 year.

Signing Ceremonies
In January and February 2021, the Committee organised a series of
ceremonies on agreement signing for the coaches and presentation
of the appointment letters to the convenors.
On 22 January 2021, Mr Belvinderjit Singh was appointed SKA’s
hockey convenor while Mr Ahmad Bakri Bin Marfi was appointed
the head coach. Soon after, on 2 February 2021, we appointed Ms
Gurkiran Kaur Bajwa as the convenor and Ms Sharanjeet Kaur as
the co-convenor, and Ms Wee Li Ting as the coach for netball. The
football section had several appointments on the same day. Mr
Sirranjit Singh was appointed SKA’s football manager while Ms
Harvender Kaur was made the football convenor. Mr Sukvinder
Singh was appointed the Men’s National Football League (NFL)
Division One head coach. Mr M Sasikumar was appointed the
women’s football head coach and the assistant coach for the NFL
Division One. For the ladies’ football team, Mr Talvinder Singh
was appointed to assist him. On 16 February 2021, the ceremony
witnessed the appointment of Mr Amarpal Singh s/o Major Singh
as the badminton convenor and Mr Ikbal Singh and Mr Jasvinder
Singh as the pool convenor and co-convenor respectively. We also
appointed Mr Manminder Singh s/o Abtar Singh as the women’s
hockey team coach while Mr Jeremiah Thong was made SKA’s
juniors development coach.
SKA’s Vice-President, Mr Sarjit Singh Sona, presented the
appointment letters while the contracts were signed by the
Chairperson of the Sports Committee, Mr Tarlok Singh.

Vesakhi Mela: Sports Carnival
During Vesakhi Mela 2021, the Committee organised noncompetitive matches in football, hockey, netball, badminton and
pool. Enthusiasts of different ages had a fun and enjoyable time.
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Held on 1 May 2021, the events were spearheaded by the various
convenors and their individual teams.
On the same day, we organised a deadlift challenge, in collaboration
with Powerlifting Singapore, Gold’s Gym and Strength Avenue. It
was great to see the participants push themselves to their limits
and not only lift incredible weights but also lift everyone around
with their high spirits.
Close to 250 individuals took part in the various sports matches with
the safe management measures well in place.
The participants had a great time and complimented SKA for
innovating and organising the sporting activities during the testing
times.

National League Participation
Following the relaxation of the COVID-19 measures in April 2021, the
SKA netball and hockey teams began their matches in the National
Netball League and the National Hockey League respectively. We
registered four teams for the latter tournament.

National Day Games: Sports Festival
The 56th National Day celebrations did not dampen the spirit of SKA’s
members who marked the occasion on 21 August 2021, despite the
COVID-19 measures being in place. SKA took the opportunity to
celebrate the special day with a series of social, health-related and
sporting activities.
The Sports Committee organised football, hockey, netball and
badminton. The participants appreciated the fact that they were
finally able to don their sports equipment and participate in matches
and sports drills at the Association.

Mini-Hockey League
A mini-league, based on a two versus two format, was organised
for the men’s open hockey team between September and November
2021. The exciting competition witnessed players competing for
prizes ranging from hockey sticks and accessories to vouchers.
The tournament was well received. The hockey section looks
forward to organising more such events in the near future.

Two Versus Two Football Competition
The football section was also delighted to introduce its first two
versus two tournament at the Association, primarily in response to
the restrictions imposed by COVID-19.
On 30 November 2021, the mini-football tournament involved
players from the women’s team. The event provided the opportunity
for the ladies to experience competition while developing match
fitness.
Medals were presented to the top four teams and a trophy was also
awarded to the most improved player in the SKA ladies’ team.
On 21 December 2021, the SKA football section organised its
second two versus two women’s tournament. The event was held in
partnership with the ladies from Hilderinc Sports Group.
The event saw the participation of 14 teams, seven from each club.
It provided the ladies with much-valued exposure and confidence.
The final pitted both teams from the SKA side. Medals were
presented to the top four teams.

The players enjoyed themselves thoroughly. At the end of the games,
each of the players went home with a National Day participation
medal.
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Veterans
Wing
Established in 2019, the Veteran Wing organises social, sporting and
health-focused activities for SKA’s senior members. The Committee
encourages the members to lead healthy and active lifestyles while
connecting them to the Association’s activities for senior members.
The Veterans Wing organised, independently and in partnership
with the other Committees, several events in 2021.

Veterans Weekly Hockey Sessions
After a break of almost 10 months due to the COVID-19 restrictions,
the SKA veterans’ knockabout hockey sessions resumed at the
hockey turf at Premier Pitch.
The veterans’ hockey sessions witnessed a healthy turnout of
members, and the invited players have been joining in the weekly
knockabouts.
With the initiation of Phase Three of the COVID-19 measures,
the sessions witnessed groups of eight players participating in a
four-a-side games while adhering to the safe distancing measures
implemented by the authorities.

Vesakhi Mela: Brisk Walking
The Veterans Wing organised a brisk walking activity for the
seniors during Vesakhi Mela. Close to 40 participants, including the
volunteers, participated in the event on 1 May 2021.
The volunteers led the participants in a warm-up session before
taking them on a three-kilometre walk along Race Course Road. They
also ensured that the safe management measures were adhered to
throughout the event.
The tea reception, with samosas and pakoras, after the walk, was
an excellent way of completing the event.

National Day Games: Brisk Walking Session
During SKA’s National Day Games on 21 August 2021, the Veterans
Wing worked with the Ladies Wing to organise a brisk walking and
tea session. About 50 participants attended the event.
The session involved a three-kilometre walk as well as a tea
reception which included tea, sandwiches, samosas, spring rolls
and a National Day cake. The Ladies Wing sponsored the cake for
the occasion.
The Veterans Wing was delighted to organise its second brisk
walking session, which was well received by the senior members.
Members can expect more events under the Veterans Wing’s
platform, moving forward.
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Young
Khalsa
Young Khalsa proactively reaches out to the younger segment of the
Sikh community. This Committee focuses on the professional and
personal development of young Sikh members through intellectual
and enrichment programmes. In addition, it concentrates on young
parents and their children and organises activities to develop young
minds and build stronger bonds between the two groups.
In 2021, despite the restrictions imposed due to the COVID-19
pandemic, Young Khalsa worked creatively and ensured that it was
able to present several interesting programmes for young children
and their parents.

Monthly Storytelling Sessions
In response to parents wanting their children to meet and mingle
with other children in the community, Young Khalsa decided to host
monthly storytelling sessions at the Association.
During these sessions on the last Sunday of each month, themebased and culturally Punjabi books are chosen for the sessions.
The themes of the stories include bravery, love and bullying, among
others.
In April 2021, Young Khalsa invited Singapore author, Mr Sandeep
Singh, to read his book, Aman Goes To School, during the session.
The children thoroughly enjoyed his session.
Unfortunately, the Young Khalsa team had to stop the storytelling
session when the COVID-19 cases increased. Young Khalsa has
plans to resume the session in early 2022 and will inject more novel
items into the programme.

Mindful Parenting Workshops
Young Khalsa partnered with Mental ACT to organise workshops
concurrently with its monthly storytelling sessions.
Mental ACT comprises a group of enthusiastic activists which
focuses on mental well-being and run parenting workshops to instill
skills and ideas to build a stronger emotional bond between parents
and children.
During the sessions at the Association, key themes such as
emotional well-being and bullying were discussed. In May and June
2022, when we had to stop the storytelling session, we took the
workshops online and parents and children discussed emotional
well-being and their love language.
As the parents expressed their preference for physical interactions
during these workshops, Young Khalsa hopes to resume the inperson session soon.
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Vesakhi Mela: Raunak Time
Close to 50 children, many accompanied by their parents, had a
fun and entertaining time with activities such as dhol making,
storytelling and a bhangra workshop on 1 May 2021.
Held in conjunction with Vesakhi Mela, the event saw the children
also being educated on the significance of Vesakhi from a cultural
and religious perspective.
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Amidst these trying times, Young Khalsa certainly brought raunak
to SKA with its partners – Singapore Sikh Education Foundation,
Khalsa Kindergarten, Sikh Sewaks Singapore and Yaar Panj-Aab
Phangra.

ska’s

Partnerships and
Collaborations
SKA places significant emphasis on building partnerships and
initiating collaborations across a diverse range of partners. These
platforms enable the Association to enhance its programmes, tap
on complementary capabilities and expertise and expand the value
proposition for our members.

due to COVID-19 and how they managed these challenges. As the
participants shared their experiences, the attendees realised that
each one of them encountered different and unique challenges. The
pandemic had impacted each one of them in different ways and was
based on factors such as their age, gender, professions, and the
family and social support networks available to them.

In 2021, SKA made significant contributions to the development of
the Sikh community and Singapore society at large through several
partnerships and collaborations.

It was an interesting and enriching session. SKA was delighted to
be a part of it

Youth Development Programme

Sikh Youth Organisations Gathering

At the start of the year, SKA collaborated with the Singapore
Sikh Education Foundation (SSEF) to launch a youth development
programme for young, budding sportspersons.

On 19 March 2021, SKA hosted a meeting of representatives of
several youth organisations – YSA, Sikh Sewaks Singapore, the
Singapore Sikh Professional Network (SSPN) and SKA’s Young
Khalsa. The event was initiated and organised by the Sikh Advisory
Board (SAB).

This programme aimed at providing opportunities for SKA’s members
and non-members to participate in hockey, football, netball and
other sports activities of the Association.
The SKA Hockey Youth Development Programme started off with
a bang with full attendance on 5 March 2021. The football section
followed suit. The eventual plan is to have young Sikhs interested in
all SKA’s sporting activities.

A Chai Chat: Pandemic Reflections
SKA partnered Young Sikh Association (Singapore) [YSA] and the
Indian Muslim Professionals (IMPROF) for a Chai Chat on 5 February
2021. The IMPROF, which regularly organises Chai Chats on various
issues and topics, extended an invitation to both SKA and YSA to
start the series this year.
During the first Chai Chat for 2021 titled ‘Pandemic Reflections’, the
participants were invited to share the challenges they experienced

During the meeting, the participants discussed areas where there
was synergy for them to work with one another, the support and
guidance they sought from the SAB in their work and also clarity
and positions on key issues facing the community in Singapore.
Encouraged by the candid, constructive and insightful session,
the participants agreed to make this a more frequent and regular
platform.

Exhibition on the Sikhs in Singapore
SKA was honoured to be a partner for the ‘Sikhs in Singapore – A
Story Untold’ exhibition at the Indian Heritage Centre.
The exhibition was officially launched by Senior Minister
and Coordinating Minister for Social Policies, Mr Tharman
Shanmugaratnam, on 26 March 2021.
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The exhibitiion had over 400 Sikh artefacts on display from the
Kapany & Khanuja collection of the United States, local Sikh art
collectors, Sikh families and the various Sikh institutions.
This first of its kind on the Sikh community in Singapore, the
exhibition ran from 27 March to 30 September 2021.

Indian Cultural Festival
SKA was delighted to be a partner of the Little India Shopkeepers &
Heritage Association Indian Cultural Festival.

Following the opening remarks by Mr Malminderjit Singh, Chairman,
SAB, Dr Kamala Priya Jayaprakash, Resident, Primary & Community
Care Division, Ministry of Health, spoke on COVID-19 and various
aspects of the vaccination programme. Mr Harbhajan Singh,
Emeritus Fellow, Senior Nurse Manager at Tan Tock Seng Hospital,
then spoke about his personal experience on taking the vaccination.
The presentations were followed by a panel discussion with a range
of pertinent questions from the floor.

Vesakhi Mela: Movie Screening

The festival was officially launched by Ms Indranee Rajah, Minister
in the Prime Minister’s Office and Second Minister for Finance and
National Development, on 14 April 2021.

As part of Vesakhi Mela, YSA partnered with SKA to organise
community screenings of the film, ‘The Sikh Road’, on 1 and 2 May
2021.

The month-long festival, which included an exhibition, was an
opportunity to experience Indian culture and tradition as well as to
savour the different cuisines of the community.

Co-produced by YSA and the National University of Singapore
Geography Department, the film captures aspects of the Sikh
community in Singapore, including its history, how the community
has used resources and created critical institutions to meet the
present needs of the community, and some future issues the
community may encounter in Singapore.

Put together by 16 Indian ethnic organisations, including SKA, the
exhibition featured their unique cultural aspects and the ways they
celebrate the New Year.

Conversations on Women Development

The two-day screenings saw various individuals and groups,
including many from outside the Sikh community.

The SKA Ladies Wing partnered with REACH, the Singapore Indian
Development Association Youth Club and YSA to organise the
‘Conversations of Women’s Development’ session at SKA on 17
April 2021.
The in-person event witnessed around 50 participants from various
backgrounds participating in facilitated group discussions on issues
women face at home, school, work and in the community.

On-line Seminar
SKA was pleased to be a partner of the SSPN’s webinar on ‘The
Next Big Thing’ on 26 June 2021.

Ms Indranee Rajah, Minister in the Prime Minister’s Office and
Second Minister for Finance and National Development, and Mr
Vikram Nair Member of Parliament for Sembawang GRC, graced the
event.
The Ladies Wing was delighted to be part of the initiative and it was
encouraged by the positive feedback from the event participants.

Dialogue Session on COVID-19 Vaccination
On 24 April 2021, SKA and the SAB jointly organised a dialogue
session on why one should take the COVID-19 vaccination. Close to
50 guests attended the event.
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The webinar presented the sustainability plan that Singapore has
been pushing forward aggressively in recent years. The focus was
to provide insights on what sustainability was all about as well as
clear myths and misconceptions, why it impacted the man on the
street and, most importantly, where the increasing potential career
opportunities were within this space. It was designed to help the
participants understand the multidisciplinary nature of sustainability
and the multiple pathways to pursuing green jobs.
The webinar witnessed a sign up of about 40 registrants tuning in on
a Saturday afternoon to listen to three sustainability advocates who
provided valuable information to the audience through speaking
in their personal capacity. The speakers skilfully distilled heavy
technical terms and presented the public information into easy to
digest items and critical insights.
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Panel Discussion and Dialogue Session
SKA partnered the SAB and YSA to organise a virtual panel
discussion and dialogue session on ‘Racism and the Minorities in
Singapore: Impact and Responses’ on 25 July 2021.
The events had close to 90 participants logging onto Zoom to be part
of some candid discussions on racism, racial harmony and ethnic
relations among the different communities in Singapore.
The first part of the session included a panel discussion, comprising
Ms Chua Mui Hoong from The Straits Times, Mr Mohamed Imran
Mohamed Taib from the Centre for Interfaith Understanding, Mr
Malminderjit Singh from the SAB, and Ms Sheila Pakir from the
Lee Kuan Yew School of Public Policy at the National University of
Singapore.
Dr Janil Puthucheary, Senior Minister of State for Communications
& Information, and Health; and Chairman of OnePeople.sg; and Mr
Alvin Tan, Minister of State for Culture, Community & Youth, and
Trade & Industry, also offered their views on the topic of racism and
discrimination.
The event received much complimentary feedback from the
participants who appreciated the frank and open views expressed
on the panel discussion and dialogue session.

Financial Seminar
SKA was delighted to be a supporting partner of Money Ideas’
‘Financial Seminar’ on 3 and 10 July 2021. Organised by M P Sellvem
Organisation and supported by Institute for Financial Literacy and
MoneySense, the free financial seminar was aimed at increasing
the financial literacy levels amongst Singaporeans.
Dr Janil Puthucheary, Senior Minister of State for Communications
& Information, and Health, was the Guest-of-Honour for the event.
The event featured speakers from the business and financial sectors,
and covered a range of issues. These included the suitability of
investments, investing in cryptocurrencies, creating passive income,
making money grow, enhancing wealth, and seeking help for debt
management issues, among others.
The event also featured the findings of a recently concluded survey
by the Civilians Association (Singapore) Youth Wing on the financial

literacy level and concerns of the Singapore Indian community in
financial management.
The two-day hybrid event attracted close to 3,500 viewers on the
Money Ideas’ Facebook page.

Open Bhangra Session
The Yaar Panj-Aab Phangra (YPP) troupe was back with another round
of high-energy, shoulder-popping bhangra session on 11 September
2021, after a hiatus due to Phase 2 heightened alert measures. SKA
was delighted to be a supporting partner for the event.
It was an eagerly anticipated session that attracted a turnout of 35
participants. The session consisted of both adults and children who
thoroughly enjoyed the event and requested for more such sessions.
The participants were taught basic bhangra moves, focusing on their
footwork as well as on hand movements. The YPP trainers opined
that it was a very fulfilling session.

Movie Partnerships
In 2021, SKA succeeded in tying up movie partnerships with Vision
Discs Pte Ltd and Zee Movies for its members in 2021.
The movies included Puaada and Qismat 2 in August and September
2021 respectively, followed by the Punjabi hit movie, Paani Ch
Madhaani, and the Hindi blockbuster, Antim – The Final Truth in
November 2021.
The partnership for Puaada saw SKA’s members enjoying special
rates on the tickets while for Qismat 2, SKA’s members and their
families were treated to a special premiere at Carnival Cinemas.
And in conjunction with the screening of Paani Ch Madhaani and
Antim – the Final Truth, SKA organised quizzes for its members. The
winners received complimentary passes to the movies.

Membership with FSIO@SICCI
SKA joined 23 other Indian institutions to form the Federation of
Singapore Indian Organisations@Singapore Indian Chamber of
Commerce and Industry (FSIO@SICCI).
Held on 5 October 2021 at RELC Auditorium, the memorandum of
understanding signing ceremony was graced by Emeritus Senior
Minister Goh Chok Tong.
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FSIO@SICCI has been established with the objective of presenting
a single voice to stakeholders on critical issues affecting the
community in Singapore. Among others, the signatories will
enhance the liaison and cooperation between their respective
organisations to provide the community and business organisation
with a platform to dialogue common issues, voice common concerns,
share information and aggregate resources to outreach and upskill
the community.
The event was held in conjunction with a fireside chat with ESM Goh
on his book, Standing Tall. The session was moderated by Mr Han
Fook Kwang, Editor-at-Large of The Straits Times.

Sikh Graduates Tea Reception
SKA was delighted to be a partner of the Sikh Graduates Tea
Reception on 16 October 2021.
Organised by YSA, the event was also supported by the Central Sikh
Gurdwara Board. Given the COVID-19 restrictions, the reception
was held in a hybrid version, with 50 guests present at SKA’s Lee
Foundation Hall, with another 30 participating in the event via Zoom.
Mr Pritam Singh, Member of Parliament for Aljunied GRC and Leader
of the Opposition, was the Guest-of-Honour for the ceremony.
Following his address, Mr Pritam presented certificates to the
graduates from local and overseas institutions of higher learning.
During the event, two valedictorians, Mr Charanpal Singh and
Ms Simha Kaur, also shared their educational sojourns with the
attendees. Then they joined Mr Pritam on stage for an engaging
discussion on ‘The Experience of Education in the New Normal’. The
discussions focused on several pertinent issues, including the value
of hybrid learning, different definitions of success, having a longterm view of education and the importance of internships, among
others.

The STS Konnects Network
On 6 November 2021, the Singapore Telugu Samajam (STS)
launched STS Konnects to raise awareness about the well-being of
the people living in Singapore, enhance the various technology skills
among them as well as to promote national integration through such
programmes.
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SKA partnered STS and about 20 Indian associations and groups on
this important initiative.
The launch of STS Konnects saw Mr Piyush Gupta, Chief Executive
Officer and Director of DBS Group, gracing the event as the
Chief Guest. He participated in a fire-side chat with the on-line
participants. The session examined various aspects of technology in
reaching out and connecting people as well as in the working space,
among others.
In 2021, STS Konnects organised regular sessions on a range of
pertinent issues. They included cyber security and awareness by
Mr Phoram Mehta, Chief Information Security Officer, APAC, PayPal;
and data science by Mr Muni Vinay, Regional Head of Data and
Enterprise Intelligence, Lazada.

The Step Tracker Giveaway
The SKA Ladies Wing and the Sikh Welfare Council (SIWEC)
were delighted to support the community challenge of the Health
Promotion Board.
Held from 16 to 20 November 2021, 304 men and women registered
for the challenge and collected their step trackers at SKA.

ska’s Partnerships and Collaborations

The ladies from the Ladies Wing and SIWEC were involved in the
publicity and promotion of the challenge to members of the Sikh
community. They were also on hand during the distribution exercise
to explain the activity in Punjabi to the elderly who were not fluent
with the English language.
The challenge was an important effort to promote a healthy lifestyle
and the Ladies Wing was pleased to be part of the initiative.

Video Premiere and Panel Discussion
SKA and YSA jointly organised a music video premiere and panel
discussion on the migrant workers community in Singapore on 20
November 2021.
Mr Vikram Nair, Member of Parliament for Sembawang GRC, was
the Guest-of-Honour for the event.
Filmmaker and songwriter, Mr Jagraj Singh Wasan, produced and
presented ‘Dance Karneya’, a highly entertaining music video on the
migrant workers in Singapore.

Following the launch, the panellists, comprising Ms Debbie Fordyce
of Transient Workers Count Too, Mr Tan En of Ray of Hope and Mr
Jagraj, shared their perspectives on ‘Migrant Workers in Singapore:
Improving Lives; Ensuring Dignity’. The session was moderated by
Mr Martin Tan of The Majurity Trust.
The presentations were followed by a frank and highly engaging
discussion session. The attendees certainly enjoyed the music video
and the enlightening discussions.

Asia Pacific Kid Entrepreneur Championship
SKA was pleased to be a supporting partner for the Asia Pacific
Kid Entrepreneur Championship on 27 and 28 November 2021. This
exciting educative initiative was presented by Kidspreneurship.
The competition was opened to students in the age group of 8 to
14 years, residing in the Asia Pacific region. The platform gave the
students a chance to learn the ropes of entrepreneurship and present
their ideas to the judges. It was also a wonderful opportunity for the
participants to experience entrepreneurship early on and get the
confidence to create solutions while meeting children from across
the world.

The Sikhs in Singapore Presentation
SKA was invited by the Singapore Fine Arts Society (SIFAS) on 4
December 2021 to make a presentation on the Sikhs in Singapore.
An initiative under SIFAS’ ‘Unity in Diversity – Exploring Cultures,
Building Communities’, the event was a unique platform to share,
interact, seek and imbibe the myriad cultures that form an essential
part of Indian art and civilisation.
Ms Harveen Kaur, Chairperson of SKA’s Young Khalsa, took the
opportunity to share about the tenets of Sikhism and the journey of
the Sikhs in Singapore.
The more than 30 attendees included representatives from the
various Indian groups such as the Malayalee Association, Singai
Tamil Sangam, The Assam Association, The Sindhi Association
of Singapore and The Parsi Zoroastrian Association of Singapore.
Over 200 SIFAS members also tuned in to the livestream on SIFAS’
Facebook.
Mr Simranjit Singh, Executive Producer of ‘The Saint Soldier’ and
Council member of the Central Sikh Gurudwara Board, also shared
the conceptualisation of the story of Bhai Maharaj Singh and why it
was important for it to be shared in a new medium for generations
to come. He also added to the discussion the importance of music
in Sikhism.

Economic and Job Outlook
On 11 December 2021, the SSPN organised its year-end flagship
event on ‘Economic and Job Outlook for 2022’. Senior industry
leaders covered topics ranging from health technology and data
science to the gig economy, digital marketing and advertising in a
fun and interactive session.
The panellists had a lively discussion with the attendees on selfadvancement, personal branding and choosing the right career path
for young professionals. They emphasised the importance of being
inquisitive and open to honing different skills to remain relevant and
marketable to future employers.
During the session, healthcare technology and innovation were
highlighted as two industries that may appeal to employees for
their growth prospects. There is a rising demand for professionals to
occupy roles in product management, sales, marketing and research,
among others.
SKA was delighted to support this important initiativeiate.
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Event Diversity
SKA worked with several like-minded organisations to organise
events in the common pursuit of important objectives. These
organisations included the Sikh Advisory Board, Singapore Sikh
Education Foundation, Singapore Sikh Professional Network, Young
Sikh Association (Singapore), Sikh Welfare Council, Sikh Sewaks
Singapore, Yaar Panj-Aab Phangra, Indian Muslim Professionals,
Indian Heritage Centre, Little India Shopkeepers & Heritage
Association), REACH, Singapore Indian Development Association
Youth Club, Federation of Singapore Indian Organisations,
Singapore Indian Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Singapore
Telugu Samajam, Health Promotion Board and the Singapore Fine
Arts Society.

In 2021, SKA organised and participated in 53 events and activities in
2021. This amounted to more than four events a month. At the same
time, we supported and hosted 26 events by partner institutions
from within and outside the Sikh community.
Recognising the challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, we
innovated and continued to organise events and programmes while
adhering to the various measures imposed by the government to
curb the spread of the virus.
In the course of the year, we launched several new initiatives. These
included health screening exercises by SEWA Healthcare, National
Day Observance Ceremony and Dialogue Session, the National Day
Games, storytelling sessions, workshops on mindful parenting and
the mini hockey and football tournaments, among others. At the same
time, we enhanced the current offerings by adding new elements
and increasing their regularity. Lastly, we reached out to a number
of partners for both diversity and multiplicity in our programmes.
The outreach efforts also ensured our ability to achieve far greater
success through finite resources.

Moving forward, as normalcy returns in a post COVID-19 landscape,
the Association hopes to present even more interesting and varied
programmes and events for the members with the aim of ensuring
that SKA is a lively and vibrant association.

Diversity of Events (2021)
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Calendar of Events
JANUARY 2021
9 January

Lohri Celebrations

10 January

Taekwondo Classes

23-24 January
31 January

SIFAS Open House (Supporting Partner)
Health Mela@SKA

January

Launch of Youth Development Programme

January

Sports Section Signing Ceremonies

FEBRUARY 2021
4 February

Start of Bollybeats Dance Classes

5 February

A Chai Chat: Pandemic Reflections (Partner)

14 February

Launch of 90th Anniversary Logo

16 February

Veterans Weekly Hockey Session

28 February

Storytelling Session

February

Sports Section Signing Ceremonies

MARCH 2021
1 March

Start of Dhol Classes

13 March

International Women’s Day Celebrations

19 March

Sikh Youth Organisations Gathering (Host)

26 March

Exhibition on the Sikhs in Singapore (Partner)

28 March

Storytelling Session
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APRIL 2021
1 April
3-4 April
8 April

Start of Chair Yoga Classes
Passport to Better Health and SEDAP
Start of Bollybeat Dance Classes

10-11 April

Bukit Batok East Community Club Health Screening

11-13 April

Vesakhi Health Screening

14 April

Indian Cultural Festival Participation (Partner)

17 April

Conversation on Women’s Development (Partner)

24 April

Dialogue Session on COVID-19 Vaccination

25 April

Storytelling Session

29 April

Launch of 90th Anniversary Microsite

30 April

Vesakhi Mela: Chair Yoga Mass Participation

30 April

Vesakhi Mela: Bollybeat Dance Class

April

Launch of SKA’s Membership Promotion

April

Participation in National Netball League

April

Participation in National Hockey League

MAY 2021
1 May

Vesakhi Mela: Raunak Time for the Children

1 May

Vesakhi Mela: Punjabi Poetry Competition

1 May

Vesakhi Mela: Sports Carnival

1 May

Vesakhi Mela: Deadlift Challenge

1 May

Vesakhi Mela: Brisk Walking for the Seniors

1 May

Vesakhi Mela: Bhangra Dance Class

1 May

Vesakhi Mela: Movie Screening (Partner)

30 May
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JUNE 2021
20 June

Installation of Timeline Wall

26 June

Online Seminar on ‘The Next Big Thing’ (Partner)

27 June

Mindful Parenting Workshop

JULY 2021
3-10 July

Financial Seminar (Supporting Partner)

15 July

Resumption of Chair Yoga Classes

15 July

Start of Bollybeat Dance Classes

25 July

Panel Discussion and Dialogue Session (Partner)

July

Zoom Learning the Punjabi Way

AUGUST 2021
7 August

National Day Observance Ceremony and Dialogue Session

21 August

National Day Games: Sporting Activities

21 August

National Day Games: Brisk Walking

21 August

National Day Games: Celebratory Dinner

28 August

Teeyan Celebrations

August

SKA Movie Partnership: Puaada (Partner)

SEPTEMBER 2021
11 September

Yaar Panj-Aab Bhangra Troupe Open Bhangra Session (Supporting Partner)

21 September

75th Annual General Meeting

September

SKA Movie Partnership: Qismat 2 (Partner)

September to November Men’s Open Hockey Mini League
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OCTOBER 2021
5 October

Membership with FSIO@SICCI (Partner)

16 October

Sikh Graduates Tea Reception (Partner)

20 October

Start of SKA’s Website Revamp

30 October

Khalsa Kindergarten Graduation Ceremony

NOVEMBER 2021
6 November

STS Konnects Network (Partner)

8 November

Start of Dhol Classes

13 November
16-20 November

Khalsa Kindergarten Year-end Concert
The Step Tracker Giveaway (Supporting Partner)

20 November

Health Screening at Pasir Ris Elias Community Club

20 November

Dance Karneya Premiere and Panel Discussion

27 November

Diwali Fiesta

27-28 November
30 November

Asia Pacific Kid Entrepreneur Championship (Supporting Partner)
Inaugural Two Versus Two Football Tournament

November

Movie Partnership: Paani Ch Madhaani (Partner)

November

Movie Partnership: Antim – The Final Truth (Partner)

DECEMBER 2021
4 December
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The Sikhs in Singapore Presentation (Partner)

11 December

Microeconomics and Job Outlook 2022 (Partner)

21 December

Two Versus Two Football Tournament

23 December

Appreciation Lunch for Chair Yoga Participants

December

Making Healthy Gulab Jamun Video Presentation

December

Relocation of Khalsa Kindergarten to SKA

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION

Report of

the Board of Trustees
General
The Singapore Khalsa Association (SKA) Trust Fund was set up in 1959 with the objective of investing some of the funds in the Association (savings) to
provide for its longer-term growth requirements. The initial capital of the Trust Fund was $25,000 and was put under the charge of the SKA Trustees.
Over the years, SKA contributed towards this capital with further injections of $99,000 in the 1970s and $453,000 in the 1980s, making a total of
$577,000 in capital. The balance of the growth of the Trust Fund has come from reinvestment of its earnings and capital growth of the investments
made.
The current Board of Trustees comprises:
Chairperson

Mr Gurdip Singh Usma

Vice Chairman

Colonel (Retired) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon

Secretary/Treasurer

Mr Ajit Singh

Member

Mr Inderjit Singh
Lieutenant Colonel (Retired) Mejar Singh Gill
Mr Sowaran Singh
				
The members of the Investment Committee for the three-year period from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2025 are as follows:
Chairperson

Mr Gurdip Singh Usma

Secretary

Mr Ajit Singh

Members

Mr Mandeep Singh Nalwa
Mr Harpreet Singh

In accordance with the constitution, we should have five members of the Investment Committee. We are still pursuing an additional member of the
Investment Committee to be appointed in due course.
The Board of Trustees and the Investment Committee met twice in 2021, together with our bankers to review the portfolio and jointly made the
decisions on any sales or purchases.

Value of the Trust Fund
Nearly all the investments of SKA’s Trust Fund are in shares of public-listed companies quoted on the Singapore Stock Exchange. The general
philosophy of the Trustees in selecting the investment companies has been that of conservatism and long-term view. The Investment Committee, in
consultation with our investment bankers, provides the guidance in the investment decisions made by Trustees for the Trust Fund.
The value of the SKA investment fund had steadily grown over time and was almost $14 million at the end of the Fiscal Year 2014. Most of this
growth had come in the last 15 years or so, resulting from the general growth of the Singapore economy, the growth of the investment companies and
the bullish stock market. The financial crisis in 2008 did result in a decline of the fund to around $8.5 million. However, the subsequent stock market
rebound recovered that shortfall. The decrease in the value of the Trust Fund over the past six years primarily reflects these disbursements of funds.

Use of SKA Trust Fund
Major Renovations
At the various SKA general meetings, the members approved major renovations to the SKA building amounting to $11.9 million, of which the Trustees
funded $9.2 million. This amount has been fully disbursed; with $2 million being disbursed in 2015, $5.5 million in 2015, $1.5 million in 2016 and the
final $200,000 in 2017.
SKA’s Renovation and Rectification Work
At the SKA Annual General Meeting (AGM) in 2019, the members approved further renovations of $550,000 to be funded from the Trust Fund and this
amount has been fully disbursed – $400,000 in 2020 and $150,000 in 2021.
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Khalsa Kindergarten’s Renovation
At the SKA AGM in 2021, the members approved the renovation of Khalsa Kindergarten. The amount of $250,000 was funded from the Trust Fund. Of
this amount, $230,000 has been disbursed – $100,000 in 2021 and $130,000 in 2022.
This amount has been given to the Management Committee (MC) as a loan, which will be returned to the Trust Fund in tranches with effect from 2023.
Others
In 2020, the MC replenished approximately $80,000 to the Trust Fund, being Goods and Services Tax reimbursements from the building project.
In 2021, the Trustees advanced $50,000 to the MC to meet temporary cashflow shortfalls due to the impact of COVID-19 on the Association’s
operations. The amount will be returned to the Trust Fund in 2022.
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Trust Fund Net Operating Income
The SKA investment fund has been steadily generating dividend income over the years. Our general strategy over the recent years has been to invest
more in defensive and higher dividend yielding stocks, which has helped improve this source of income. In view of this, we have been able to generate
a steady flow of dividend income of approximately four per cent on an annual basis. The drop in operating income since 2015 is due to the reduction
in the value of the fund, arising from the S$9,200,000, $550,000 and $230,000 disbursements for the various renovations referred to above. Since
2020, there has been a significant reduction in dividend income compared to 2019 as a result of the scaling back of dividends by companies in view
of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Trust Fund Net Operating Income
The general philosophy of the Trustees has been to spread our investments in various asset types and with a long-term view of steady growth and
reasonable yield. We have attempted to stay away from trading type investments, which may generate better returns but at a higher risk.
The analysis below shows that our major investments are in Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), and the banking and property sectors, which are
generally less volatile and provide a good yield.

Trust Fund Investment Holdings
By Sector (Percentage Mix) and Holdings Details
An analysis of the Trust Fund by sector/industry and the companies in which the Trust Fund is holding shares/units as at 31 December 2021 in each
of the sectors is as follows:

Trust Fund By Sector (% Mix)

Trust Fund By Sector ($)
Sector and Company Name
CASH

15%

Value (S’000)
124

Banking
DBS Bank

21%

54%

1,311

OCBC Bank

794

UOB Bank

1,026

Property

4%
2%

4%

City Developments

340

Capitaland

534

Commercial REITs

Banking

Others

Cash

Telecommunications

Commercial REITS

Property

Ascott Res Trust

258

CapitaLand Int Com Trust

402

Keppel DC Trust

247

Mapletree Com Trust

300

Mapletree GCC Trust

2

Telecoms
Singtel

232

Others
SATS
TOTAL

194
$5,764
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The financial review for financial year (FY) 2021 is for the period 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.
The total net revenue for FY2021 was $743,797 (FY2020: $915,348), less the total operating expenditure of $2,115,332 (FY2020: $1,979,559), resulting
in a net loss before tax for the year of $1,371,535 (FY2020: $1,064,211).
The overall net revenue for FY2021 decreased by $171,551 or 19 percent over FY2020, as explained below.
Historically, SKA has had five strong pillars of revenue, including takings from the restaurant, sports and facilities, Khalsa Kindergarten, Fruit Machines
and Function Room bookings. However, these streams have been harshly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Although not comparable to the pre-COVID-19 period, three of the five stronghold revenue
streams have gradually recovered and continue to recover as explained below.
• Restaurant: The net revenue from Moghul Mahal Restaurant increased by $113,475
or 77 percent in FY2021 over FY2020. This was the direct result of reduced rental relief
provided by SKA as the food and beverage industry recovered to a satisfactory level
and customers resumed patronising the restaurant as during the pre-COVID-19 times.
• Sports and Facilities: The net revenue from sports and facilities increased by
$110,292 or 312 percent in FY2021 over FY2020. Again, this was the direct result
of reduced rental relief provided by SKA since the COVID-19 restrictions on sports,
physical exercise and other related activities were eased, allowing for larger groups of
players on the fields. This allowed for SKA’s lessees to recover losses from 2020 and
earn satisfactory levels of income in 2021.
• Khalsa Kindergarten: The revenue from Khalsa Kindergarten increased by $93,856
or 574% in FY2021 over FY2020. This was driven by an increase in the number
foreign students enrolled as compared to Singapore Citizens/Singaporean Permanent
Residents as the COVID-19 situation eased and miscellaneous fees collected for the
year.

Income Breakdown (Net)

$

Other Income

67,560

Restaurant

260,100

Fruit Machines

60,671

Function Rooms

33,920

Sports and Facilities

145,683

Khalsa Kindergarten

110,207

Car Park

33,724

Gymnasium

15,940

Membership Fees

15,992

TOTAL

743,797

Income Breakdown Net (Percentage)
Sports and Facilities - 19%

Khalsa Kindergarten - 15%

Car Park - 5%
Function Rooms - 5%
Gymnasium - 2%
Membership Fees - 2%
Fruit Machines - 8%

Other Income - 9%

Restaurant - 35%
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The increases were offset by a decrease in the remaining two traditional stronghold
revenue streams and in the ‘Other Income’ category.
• Function Rooms: The revenue from the rental of SKA’s function rooms decreased
by $52,080 or 61 percent in FY2021 over FY2020. This was the result of continued
government-imposed restrictions on event organisation.

Expenditure Breakdown
Depreciation Expenses

$
1,245,891

Staff Costs

187,341

Other Operating Expenses

152,548

• Fruit Machines: The revenue from the fruit machines decreased by $74,584 or 55
percent in FY2021 over FY2020. Similarly, this was the result of continued governmentimposed restrictions on the number of persons allowed into the room.

Building Cleaning Services

81,780

Property Tax

91,200

Security Expenses

78,246

• Other Income: This decreased by $394,422 or 85 percent in FY2021 over FY2020. This
decrease was primarily due to reduced government grants received, including under
the Job Support Scheme, during the year.

Repairs and Maintenance

61,023

Donations

41,500

Sports and Recreation

69,875

Utilities

46,014

Ladies Wing Expenses

10,544

Cultural and Social Activities

27,570

Professional Fees

21,800

The overall operational expenditure for FY2021 increased by $135,773 or seven percent
over FY2020, as explained below.
• Sports and Recreation: The expenditure for sports and recreation increased by
$40,115 or 135 percent. As explained above, this is a direct result of the ease of
government-imposed restrictions which allowed for the resumption of sporting
activities.

Total
2,115,332
• Cultural and Social Activities: The expenditure for cultural and social activities
increased by $18,984 or 221 per cent between FY2020 and FY2021. Due to the ease
of government-imposed restrictions, the annual Vesakhi Mela was held in 2020 and it was the main reason for the increase in expenditure in this
category.
• Utilities: The expenditure on utilities increased by $26,822 or 140 percent. This was due to the increase level of activities in the Association in
2021 as well as the higher average electricity tariffs.
• Professional Fees: The expenditure for professional fees increased by $16,550 or 315 percent. This is mainly due to the fees incurred for a legal
review of the SKA addition and alteration work project.
The above expenditure categories are operational administrative expenses that support SKA’s various business segments. Please refer to the Financial
Statements from page 56 to 88 for details on expenditure incurred exclusively for each business segment.

Expenditure Breakdown (Percentage)
Property Tax - 4%
Building Cleaning Services - 4%
Other Operating Expenses - 7%
Staff Costs - 9%

Security Expenses - 4%
Repairs and Maintenance - 3%
Sports and Recreation - 3%
Donations - 2%
Utilities - 2%
Ladies Wing Expenses - 1%
Professional Fees - 1%

Cultural and Social Activities - 1%

Depreciation Expenses - 59%
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Statement by the Management Committee
SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES
In the opinion of the Management Committee,
(a)

the accompanying statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of
changes in funds, statement of cash flows, and notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Singapore Khalsa Association (the “Association”) and its Trustees as at 31 December 2021 and of the financial
performance, changes in funds and cash flows of the Association and its Trustees for the reporting year ended on that date; and

(b)

at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Association and its Trustees will be able to pay
its debts as and when they fall due.

The Management Committee approved and authorised these financial statements on the date of this statement.

On behalf of the Management Committee

Mr Hernaikh Singh				Ms Ezrynn Kaur Charl
President						General Treasurer

19 July 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Khalsa Association (the “Association”) and its Trustees, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the reporting year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act,
1966 (the “Act”) and the Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Association and its Trustees as at 31 December 2021 and of the financial performance, changes in funds and cash flows of the
Association and its Trustees for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Association and its Trustees in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the statement by the Management Committee
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions
of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised
and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability
of assets.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association and its Trustees’ ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Association and its Trustees, or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association and its Trustees’ financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
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a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association and its Trustees’
internal control.

c)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (cont’d)
d)

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Association and its Trustees’ ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association and its Trustees to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion:
(i)

the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Association and its Trustees have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(ii)

there are no profits from private lotteries accrued to any individuals and also no commission either in money or money’s worth
including by way of free tickets or chances was paid in respect of the sales tickets or chances.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Naveen Sasidaran.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

19 July 2022
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–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(1,186,166)
(1,186,166)
–
(1,186,166)

66,611
743,797
(929,166)
(185,369)
50,092
(135,277)

145,683

(1,186,166)

–

–

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

164,723

Net surplus/(deficit) after fund transfer

–
300,000

19

(1,186,166)

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa
Association

Transfer to lease fund

Net (deficit)/surplus before transfer

Fair value changes on equity
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”), net of tax

Net (deficit)/surplus after income tax

Income tax income/(expense)

(135,277)

10

Expenditure

–

9

Other income

–

260,100

8

Takings from restaurant, net

12

15,940

Takings from gymnasium, net

Net (deficit)/surplus

33,724

Takings from car park, net

596

7

Takings from sports and facilities, net

33,920
110,207

Takings from dance studios, net

6

Takings from Khalsa Kindergarten, net
230

5

Takings from function halls, net

60,671

Takings from board room, net

4

Takings from fruit machines, net

100,000

–

100,000

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Interest income

–

–
123

Dividend income

–

15,992

–

$

–

$

$

Lease
fund

–

Building
fund

General
fund

Membership fees

Income

Note

Year Ended 31 December 2021

421,847

(300,000)

(100,000)

821,847

683,241

138,606

–

138,606

(9,144)

147,750

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

235

147,515

(499,596)

–

–

(499,596)

683,241

(1,182,837)

50,092

(1,232,929)

(2,124,476)

66,611
891,547

260,100

15,940

33,724

596

230

145,683

110,207

33,920

60,671

358

147,515

15,992

$

$
–

2021

Trust fund
retained by
SKA Trustees

375,091

320,064

–

55,027

–

55,027

(64,912)

119,939

(795,409)

915,348

460,397

146,625

10,440

12,981

737

700

35,391

16,351

86,000

135,255

148

–

10,323

$

General
fund

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(1,184,150)

–

–

(1,184,150)

–

(1,184,150)

–

(1,184,150)
(1,184,150)

$

Building
fund

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

100,000

–

100,000

$

Lease
fund

–

(829,213)

(320,064)

(100,000)

(409,149)

(518,390)

109,241

–

(8,050)
109,241

117,291

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,245

114,046

$

Trust fund
retained by
SKA Trustees

(1,538,272)

–

–

(1,538,272)

(518,390)

(1,019,882)

(64,912)

(954,970)

(1,987,609)

1,032,639

460,397

146,625

10,440

12,981

737

700

35,391

16,351

86,000

135,255

3,393

114,046

10,323

$

2020

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Statement of Financial Position			

As at 31 December 2021

Note

2021

2020

$

$

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

13

7,739,179

8,613,518

Right-of-use assets

14

96,354

192,707

Other financial assets

15

5,640,642

4,647,412

13,476,175

13,453,637

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Other receivables

16

378,252

189,805

Other assets

17

2,514

2,434

Cash and cash equivalents

18

263,687

1,210,425

644,453

1,402,664

14,120,628

14,856,301

Total current assets
Total assets

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Funds
General fund

19

922,098

757,375

Building fund

19

7,505,474

8,691,640

Lease fund

19

1,025,000

925,000

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees

19

2,324,375

2,435,817

Fair value reserve
Total funds

1,837,229

1,303,940

13,614,176

14,113,772

–

105,450

–

105,450

–

50,092

105,450

94,209

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

20

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Income tax payable
Lease liabilities

20

Trade and other payables

21

401,002

492,778

Total current liabilities

506,452

637,079

Total liabilities

506,452

742,529

14,120,628

14,856,301

Total funds and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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922,098

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

757,375

Closing balance at 31 December 2020

–

Transfer to lease fund
320,064

–

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

–

Transfer from fair value reserve on disposal of equity instruments

55,027

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Fair value changes on equity instruments at FVTOCI

382,284

Opening balance at 1 January 2020

Previous period:

300,000

–

Transfer to lease fund

Closing balance at 31 December 2021

–

Transfer from fair value reserve on distribution from equity instruments

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

–

Fair value changes on equity instruments at FVTOCI

757,375
(135,277)

8,691,640

–

–

–

–

(1,184,150)

9,875,790

7,505,474

–

–

–

–

(1,186,166)

8,691,640

$

$

Net (deficit)/ surplus for the year

Building
fund

General
fund

Opening balance at 1 January 2021

Current year:

Year Ended 31 December 2021

Statement of Changes in Funds

925,000

–

100,000

–

–

–

825,000

1,025,000

–

100,000

–

–

–

925,000

$

Lease
fund

2,435,817

(320,064)

(100,000)

45,780

–

109,241

2,700,860

2,324,375

(300,000)

(100,000)

149,952

–

138,606

1,303,940

–

–

(45,780)

(518,390)

–

1,868,110

1,837,229

–

–

(149,952)

683,241

–

1,303,940

$

$
2,435,817

Fair value
reserve

Trust fund
retained by
SKA Trustees

14,113,772

–

–

–

(518,390)

(1,019,882)

15,652,044

13,614,176

–

–

–

683,241

(1,182,837)

14,113,772

$

Total

Statement of Cash Flows 			
YEAR ENDED 31 December 2021

2021

2020

$

$

(1,232,929)

(954,970)

(147,515)

(114,046)

–

11,917

1,268,377

1,270,706

96,353

96,353

Interest income

(358)

(3,393)

Interest expense

7,791

12,599

(8,281)

319,166

(188,447)

(141,779)

(80)

(121)

(91,776)

46,535

(288,584)

223,801

–

(53,541)

(288,584)

170,260

(459,941)

(1,163,667)

–

865,967

149,952

–

Cash flows from operating activities
Net deficit before tax
Adjustments for:
Dividend income
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Other receivables
Other assets
Trade and other payables
Net cash flows (used in)/from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of other financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets
Distribution from other financial asset
Dividend received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Net cash flows used in investing activities

147,515

114,046

(394,038)

(227,283)

358

3,393

(556,154)

(407,544)

(102,000)

(102,000)

(123)

(148)

(102,123)

(102,148)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of lease liabilities – principal and interest
Cash restricted in use
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

(946,861)

(339,432)

Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, beginning balance

1,199,763

1,539,195

252,902

1,199,763

Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows,
ending balance (Note 18A)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements			
Year ended 31 December 2021
1.

General
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars. The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Management Committee on the date of statement by Management Committee. The Management Committee
has the power to amend and reissue the financial statements.
The principal activities of the Association are to promote and conduct amateur sports, social and cultural activities and also
promote and advance the education of students.
The principal activities of the Trustees are to hold and manage the investments of the Singapore Khalsa Association.
The registered office is: 2 Tessensohn Road, Singapore 217646. The Association and its Trustees are situated in Singapore.

Uncertainties relating to the Covid-19 pandemic
The Covid-19 pandemic and the aftermath of the pandemic have caused and continues to cause disruptions resulting in
uncertainties surrounding the Association and its Trustees’ principal activities which has and will continue to have an adverse
effect on its financial position, financial performance of operations, cash flows and prospects for the foreseeable future.
There is significant uncertainty around the medium to long term impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. Other entities are also
evolving, and assets held by them may have material uncertainties and/or disclaimers regarding the impact of Covid-19.
These uncertainties gave rise to difficulties in making an accurate assessment by management committee of the future
financial impacts on the Association and its Trustees. The Management Committee will continue to closely monitor the
further economic development and its impact. It is, however, reasonably probable that the Covid-19 pandemic will have an
adverse impact on the Association and its Trustees’ income and results for the next reporting year, the extent of which will
depend on how long the aftermath of the pandemic lasts.

Statement of compliance with financial reporting standards
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”)
and the related interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards Council.

Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except where a financial
reporting standard requires an alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these financial
statements. The accounting policies in the financial reporting standards may not be applied when the effect of applying them
is not material. The disclosures required by financial reporting standards may not be provided if the information resulting from
that disclosure, is not material.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Apart from those involving estimations, management has made judgements in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies. The areas requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgements, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed at the end of this footnote, where
applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements			
Year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

2A.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition
The financial reporting standard on revenue from contracts with customers establishes a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer (which excludes estimates of
variable consideration that are subject to constraints, such as right of return exists, trade discounts, volume rebates and
changes to the transaction price arising from modifications), net of any related sales taxes and excluding any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. An asset (goods or services) is transferred when or as the customer obtains control of
that asset. As a practical expedient the effects of any significant financing component is not adjusted if the payment for the
good or service will be within one year.
Short term services and other services

	Revenue from service orders and term projects are recognised when the entity satisfies the performance obligation at a point
in time generally when the significant acts have been completed and when transfer of control occurs or for services that are
not significant transactions, revenue is recognised as the services are provided.

Other income
Rental income
	Rental income is recognised from operating leases as income on either a straight-line basis. Another systematic basis is used
if that basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying asset is diminished.
Dividend income
Dividend from equity instruments is recognised in profit or loss only when the entity’s right to receive payment of the dividend
is established; it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably.
Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits
Contributions to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan are recorded as an expense as they fall due. The entity’s legal
or constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it agrees to contribute to an independently administered fund (such as
the Central Provident Fund in Singapore, a government managed defined contribution retirement benefit plan). For employee
leave entitlement the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated absences is recognised
in the case of accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render service that increases their entitlement to
future compensated absences; and in the case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. A
liability for bonuses is recognised where the entity is contractually obliged or where there is constructive obligation based on
past practice.
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Year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary economic environment in which the entity operates.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
At each end of the reporting year, recorded monetary balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in
non-functional currencies are reported at the rates ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair value measurement dates
respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in profit or loss except when a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. The presentation is in the functional currency.

Income tax
The income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability method that requires the recognition of taxes payable or
refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequence of events that have been
recognised in the financial statements or tax returns. The measurements of current and deferred tax liabilities and assets
are based on provisions of the enacted or substantially enacted tax laws; the effects of future changes in tax laws or rates
are not anticipated. Tax expense (tax income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the
reporting year in respect of current tax and deferred tax. Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or
as an expense in profit or loss unless the tax relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period outside
profit or loss. For such items recognised outside profit or loss the current tax and deferred tax are recognised (a) in other
comprehensive income if the tax is related to an item recognised in other comprehensive income and (b) directly in equity if
the tax is related to an item recognised directly in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same income tax authority. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of
the reporting year and is reduced, if necessary, by the amount of any tax benefits that, based on available evidence, are not
expected to be realised. A deferred tax amount is recognised for all temporary differences, unless the deferred tax amount
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which (i) is not a business combination; and (ii) at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial recognition at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line method to allocate the
gross carrying amounts of the assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of
these assets. The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:
Leasehold land and building
Leasehold interest and expenses
Plant and equipment
	Renovation

-

2%
3.33%
10% to 33.33%
10%

An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that period the item is idle. Fully
depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements			
Year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in profit or loss. The
residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each end of the reporting year and, if expectations
differ significantly from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate, and the
depreciation charge for the current and future periods are adjusted.
Cost also includes acquisition cost, borrowing cost capitalised and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset or
component to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Subsequent costs are recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss when they are incurred.

Right-of-use assets
The right-of-use assets are accounted and presented as if they were owned such as property plant and equipment.

Leases of lessee
A lease conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. A
right-of-use asset is capitalised in the statement of financial position, measured at the present value of the unavoidable
future lease payments to be made over the lease term. A liability corresponding to the capitalised right-of-use asset is also
recognised, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives received, initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of any
future restoration, removal or dismantling costs. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. An interest expense is recognised on the lease liability (included
in finance costs). For short-term leases of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and
small office equipment) where an accounting policy choice exists under the lease standard, the lease payments are expensed
to profit or loss as incurred on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

Leases of lessor
For a lessor each of lease is classified as either an operating lease or a finance lease. A lease is classified as an operating
lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless
another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit, even if the payments are not on that
basis. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset and it is presented in its statement of financial position as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. For a finance lease the finance income is recognised over the lease term, based on a pattern
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease.
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Year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Carrying amounts of non-financial assets
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an annual impairment test is performed at the same time
every year on an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or an intangible asset not yet available for use. The carrying
amount of other non-financial assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting year for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down through profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The impairment loss is
the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount and is recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount
of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When the
fair value less costs of disposal method is used, any available recent market transactions are taken into consideration.
When the value in use method is adopted, in assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). At each end of the reporting year non-financial
assets other than goodwill with impairment loss recognised in prior periods are assessed for possible reversal of the
impairment. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been measured, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the entity
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All other financial instruments (including regular-way purchases
and sales of financial assets) are recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade date accounting or settlement date
accounting. A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the entity neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. A financial liability is removed from the
statement of financial position when, and only when, it is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expires. At initial recognition the financial asset or financial liability is measured at its fair value
plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Classification and measurement of financial assets
1.

Financial asset classified as measured at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), that is (a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Typically
trade and other receivables, bank and cash balances are classified in this category.

2.
		
3.

Financial asset that is a debt asset instrument classified as measured at FVTOCI:
There were no financial assets classified in this category at reporting year end date.
Financial asset that is an equity investment measured at FVTOCI:
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, an irrevocably election may be made to
present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. Fair
value changes are recognised in OCI but dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. The gain or loss that is presented in OCI includes any related foreign
exchange component arising on non-monetary investments (e.g., equity instruments). On disposal, the cumulative fair
value changes are not recycled to profit or loss but remain in reserves within equity. The weighted average or specific
identification method is used when determining the cost basis of equities being disposed of.

4.

Financial asset classified as measured at FVTPL:
There were no financial assets classified in this category at reporting year end date.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL in either of the following circumstances: (1) the liabilities are managed,
evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis; or (2) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise. All other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Reclassification of any financial liability is not permitted.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For the statement of cash flows the item includes cash and cash
equivalents less cash subject to restriction that form an integral part of cash management.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Fair value measurement
The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, market observable
data to the extent possible is used. If the fair value of an asset or a liability is not directly observable, an estimate is made
using valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs
(e.g., by use of the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar items, discounted cash flow
analysis, or option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances). Inputs used are consistent with the
characteristics of the asset/liability that market participants would take into account. The entity’s intention to hold an asset
or to settle or otherwise fulfil a liability is not taken into account as relevant when measuring fair value.

		Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs to the
measurement are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety: Level 1 fair value
measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2
fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the
reporting period during which the change occurred.
The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these
instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount of current financial instruments is
a reasonable approximation of the fair value. The fair values of non-current financial instruments may not be disclosed
separately unless there are significant differences at the end of the reporting year and in the event the fair values are
disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

2B.

Other explanatory information
Provisions
A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A provision is made using best estimates of the amount required in
settlement and where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount recognised is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense. Changes in estimates are reflected in profit or loss in the reporting year they occur.

2C.

Critical judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties
There were no critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that have a significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements. There were no key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting year.
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3.

Related party relationships and transactions
The financial reporting standard on related party disclosures requires the reporting entity to disclose: (a) transactions with its
related parties; and (b) relationships between parents and subsidiaries irrespective of whether there have been transactions
between those related parties. A party is related to a party if the party controls, or is controlled by, or can significantly
influence or is significantly influenced by the other party.
It is not the normal practice for the members of the Management Committee or people connected with them, to receive
remuneration, or other benefits, from the Association for which they are responsible, or from institutions connected with the
Association.
There are no significant related party transactions for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

4.

Takings from fruit machines, net
2021

2020

$

$

1,319,100

1,560,530

(19,131)

(14,700)

(5,142)

(4,653)

Income:
Collections
Expenses:
Certification and verification fees
CPF and SDF
Depreciation of fruit machine

(22,486)

(26,573)

Private lottery duty and GST

(305,360)

(368,115)

Refreshments

(11,021)

(14,580)

Repairs and maintenance

(27,291)

(11,592)

(808,628)

(935,206)

(59,370)

(49,856)

(1,258,429)

(1,425,275)

60,671

135,255

2021

2020

$

$

Replenishment of coins and payouts to winners
Staff salaries and bonuses

5.

Takings from functional halls, net

Income:
Bookings of hall – level 2

27,582

22,621

Bookings of hall – level 4

–

32,500

Bookings of hall – level 5

5,338

41,236

Function hall – other

1,000

2,643

33,920

99,000

–

(13,000)

33,920

86,000

Expenses:
Rental income remissions
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6.

Takings from khalsa kindergarten, net
2021

2020

$

$

931,494

773,109

Staff salaries and bonuses

(497,144)

(481,297)

CPF and SDF
Maintenance of premises

(76,742)

(76,674)

(30,815)

(26,952)

Curriculum costs

(71,877)

(54,838)

Allocation of administrative expenses to Khalsa Kindergarten (Note 10)

(72,000)

(72,000)

Khalsa Kindergarten relocation expenses

(25,784)

–

Others

(46,925)

(44,997)

(821,287)

(756,758)

110,207

16,351

2021

2020

$

$

Managing agent fees (Little League)

174,000

174,000

Booking of Field (KMSM Pte Ltd)

102,000

102,000

Income:
Term fees and other related income
Expenses:

7.

Takings from sports and facilities, net

Income:

Utilities recovered
Other sports and facilities income

4,731

3,537

10,362

9,868

291,093

289,405

Expenses:
Depreciation of turf

(96,353)

(96,353)

Interests

(7,791)

(12,599)

Utilities

(4,731)

(3,537)

(36,535)

(141,525)

(145,410)

(254,014)

145,683

35,391

Rental income remissions
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8.

Takings from restaurant, net
2021

2020

$

$

306,000

306,000

Income:
Restaurant
Utilities recovered

–

385

306,000

306,385

–

(385)

(45,900)

(159,375)

(45,900)

(159,760)

260,100

146,625

2021

2020

$

$

Expenses:
Utilities
Rental income remissions

9.

Other income

Government grant:
- Property tax rebate

–

90,000

39,868

205,149

- Government cash grant

–

60,000

- Others

–

51,162

21,821

18,093

- Job support scheme (#a)

IRAS wage credits
Rental relief
Others

#a

–

13,700

4,922

22,293

66,611

460,397

The purpose of the Job Support Scheme is to provide wage support to employers to help them retain their local
employees during this period of economic uncertainty amid Covid-19 for 17 months from April 2020 to August 2021.
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10.

Expenditure

Administration
Auditor’s remuneration
Accounting fee
Allocation of administrative expenses to Khalsa Kindergarten
Bank charges
Building cleaning services
CPF and SDF
Depreciation expenses
Donations:
- SSEF
- SIWEC
- Naam Ras
- Yishun Sikh Temple
- YSA High Tea
General expenses
Insurance
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment
Lift maintenance
Meeting expenses
Office equipment maintenance
Government penalty
Professional fees (#b)
Property tax
Repairs and maintenance
Staff salaries and bonuses
Security expenses
Staff welfare
Stationery, postage and printing
Telephone and telex
Temporary occupation licence
Transport
Utilities
Website expense
Activities
Cultural and social activities, net:
- Mela
- Deepavali
- Others
Ladies wing activities, net:
- International Women’s Day
- Other activities
Sports and recreation, net:
- Sports (hockey, soccer, netball)
Total
#b
76

2021
$

2020
$

17,900
22,039
(72,000)
9,835
81,780
22,380
1,245,891

18,586
22,011
(72,000)
8,817
103,200
20,356
1,244,133

18,000
12,000
–
11,500
–
39,018
18,889
–
41,306
8,318
7,377
5
21,800
91,200
61,023
164,018
78,246
943
44,227
9,440
9,992
1,905
46,014
3,441
2,016,487

18,000
12,000
7,500
–
500
13,285
23,431
11,917
25,204
4,546
7,781
1,405
5,250
90,000
61,761
163,315
73,690
–
32,968
8,518
8,160
1,487
19,192
3,212
1,938,225

26,750
820
–

–
4,775
3,811

1,646
8,898

–
11,038

69,875
107,989
2,124,476

29,760
49,384
1,987,609

The professional fees include $17,750 for a legal review of the SKA addition and alteration work project.
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11.

Employee benefits expense
2021

2020

$

$

Employee benefits expense

721,475

699,508

Contributions to defined contribution plan

104,264

101,683

Total employee benefits expense

825,739

801,191

2021

2020

$

$

187,341

183,671

64,512

54,509

573,886

563,011

825,739

801,191

Presented as:
Expenditure (Note 10)
Allocated to takings from fruit machines, net (Note 4)
Allocated to takings from Khalsa Kindergarten, net (Note 6)

12.

Income tax expense

12A.

Components of tax (income)/expense recognised in profit or loss include:
2021

2020

$

$

Current tax expense
Current tax expense

–

50,092

(Over)/under adjustments in respect of prior periods

(50,092)

14,820

Total income tax (income)/expense

(50,092)

64,912

The income tax in profit or loss varied from the amount of income tax amount determined by applying the Singapore statutory
income tax rate of 17% (2020: 17%) to net deficit before income tax as a result of the following differences:
2021

2020

$
Net deficit before income tax
Income tax benefit at the statutory rate
Non-deductible expenses
Stepped income exemption and rebate
(Over)/under adjustments to tax in respect of previous year
Others
Total income tax (income)/expense

$

(1,242,513)

(954,970)

(211,227)

(162,345)

215,141

229,862

–

(17,425)

(50,092)

14,820

(3,914)

–

(50,092)

64,912
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12B.

Deferred tax expense recognised in profit or loss
There was no deferred tax income/(expense) recognised during the year.

12C.

Deferred tax in statement of financial position

Excess of book value of plant and equipment over tax values

78

2021

2020

$

$

(75,819)

(82,765)

Tax loss carryforwards

17,103

33,427

Unutilised donations

10,200

5,100

Others

48,516

44,238

–

–

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION
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14,072
661,375

Depreciation for the year

At 31 December 2021

56,287
42,215

At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2021

234,376

269,817

305,258

828,849

35,441

793,408

–

35,441

757,967

1,063,225

–

1,063,225

–

–

1,063,225

$

Leasehold
interest and
expense

171,401

162,447

197,587

212,735

32,698

180,037

(80,732)

37,043

223,726

384,136

41,652

342,484

(92,649)

13,820

421,313

$

Plant and
equipment

6,814,334

7,911,504

9,095,654

5,119,227

1,186,166

3,933,061

–

1,184,150

2,748,911

11,933,561

88,996

11,844,565

–

–

11,844,565

$

Renovation

Leasehold interest and expense represent borrowing costs capitalised on the original building constructed in a prior year.

70,359

At 1 January 2020

Carrying value:

647,303

At 31 December 2020

–

14,072

Disposals

633,231

At 1 January 2020

703,590

–

Depreciation for the year

Accumulated depreciation:

At 31 December 2021

Additions

703,590

–

Disposals

At 31 December 2020

–

Additions

703,590

$

Leasehold land
and building

Property, plant and equipment

At 1 January 2020

Costs:

13.

Year ended 31 December 2021
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–

476,853

213,463

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

476,853

263,390

213,463

213,463

$

Construction
in progress

7,739,179

8,613,518

9,668,858

6,822,186

1,268,377

5,553,809

(80,732)

1,270,706

4,363,835

14,561,365

394,038

14,167,327

(92,649)

227,283

14,032,693

$

Total
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13.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
The construction in progress is funded by the building fund and trust fund in Note 19.
The depreciation expense is charged as follows:
2021
$
Takings from fruit machines, net (Note 4)
Expenditure (Note 10)

14.

2020
$

22,486

26,573

1,245,891

1,244,133

1,268,377

1,270,706

Right-of-use assets
The right-of-use assets in the statement of financial position. The details are as follows:
Licence
$
Cost:
At 1 January 2020

82,017

Additions

289,060

Disposals

(82,017)

At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021

289,060

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2020
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

82,017
96,353
(82,017)

At 31 December 2020

96,353

Depreciation for the year

96,353

At 31 December 2021

192,706

Net carrying value:
At 1 January 2020

–

At 31 December 2020

192,707

At 31 December 2021

96,354

The depreciation expense is charged entirely to takings from sports and facilities. (Note 7)
Other information about the leasing activities relating to the right-to-use assets are summarised as follows:
Licence
Number of right-to-use assets
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1

Remaining term – range

1 year

Remaining term – average

1 year

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION

Notes to the Financial Statements			
Year ended 31 December 2021
14.

Right-of-use assets (cont’d)
There are restrictions or covenants imposed by the leases to sublet the asset to another party. The right-of-use asset can
only be used by the lessee. Unless permitted by the owner, the lease prohibits from selling or pledging the underlying
leased assets as security. Typically, the leases are either non-cancellable or may only be cancelled by incurring a substantive
termination fee. There are usually no options to purchase or for extension; there are no variable payments linked to an index.

15.

Other financial assets
2021

2020

$

$

5,640,642

4,647,412

2021

2020

$

$

4,647,412

4,868,102

Additions

459,941

1,163,667

Disposals

–

(865,967)

(149,952)

–

683,241

(518,390)

5,640,642

4,647,412

Balance is made up of:
Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI

15A.

Movements in balances

Movements during the year:
Fair value at beginning of year

Distribution from equity investment
Increase/(decrease) in FVTOCI
Fair value at end of year

During the reporting year certain investments in equity instruments measured at FVTOCI were derecognised to realise the
gains. The fair value of the investments at the date of derecognition was $nil (2020: $865,967). Also, during the year, the
Trustees received a cash distribution of $149,952 (2020: $nil) arising from the restructuring carried out by one of its equity
investments. The cumulative fair value change of the disposed equity instruments and distribution from equity instruments
of $149,952 (2020: $45,780) was transferred to trust fund retained by SKA Trustees.

15B.

Disclosures relating to investments in equity shares at FVTOCI
The information gives a summary of the significant sector concentrations within the investment portfolio:
Level

2021

2020

2021

2020

$

$

%

%

1

1,209,099

965,164

21.4

20.8

Property industry: Singapore

1

874,182

911,836

15.5

19.6

Finance industry: Singapore

1

3,130,861

2,539,412

55.6

54.6

Telecommunication industry: Singapore

1

232,000

231,000

4.1

5.0

Airports & Air Services industry: Singapore

1

194,500

–

3.4

–

5,640,642

4,647,412

100.0

100.0

Investments managed by fund manager:
Real estate investment trust
Quoted equity shares:

Total

The fair values of quoted equity investments are based on prices in an active market (Level 1) at the end of the reporting year.
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15.

Other financial assets (cont’d)

15C.

Sensitivity analysis for price risk of equity shares at FVTOCI
There are investments in equity shares or similar instruments. Such investments are exposed to both currency risk and market
price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. Sensitivity analysis: The effect is as
follows:

A hypothetical 10% increase in the market index of quoted equity
shares at FVTOCI would have an effect on fair value of

2021

2020

$

$

564,064

464,741

For similar price decrease in the fair value of the above financial assets, there would be comparable impacts in the opposite
direction.
These figures do not reflect the currency risk, which has been considered in the foreign currency risk analysis section only.
The hypothetical changes in basis points are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

16.

Other receivables
2021

2020

$

$

Deposits to secure services

57,600

45,600

Fees and rental receivables

320,632

79,125

–

60,000

20

5,080

378,252

189,805

Cash grant receivables
Other receivables

Other receivables set out above are subject to the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model under the financial reporting standard
on financial instruments. Other receivables at amortised cost that can be graded as low risk individually are considered
to have low credit risk. At end of first reporting year, a loss allowance is recognised at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
because there has not been significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. As at end of reporting year, no loss
allowance is necessary.
Other receivables are normally with no fixed terms and therefore there is no maturity.

17.

Other assets

Prepayments
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2021

2020

$

$

2,514

2,434
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18.

Cash and cash equivalents
2021

2020

$

$

- Association

129,232

604,710

- Trustees

123,670

595,053

Not restricted in use

Restricted in use (#)
Cash at end of the year
Interest earning balances

(#)

10,785

10,662

263,687

1,210,425

10,785

10,662

Included in the amount restricted in use, is an amount of $10,785 (2020: $10,662) held by the bank to cover the bank
guarantee issued.

The interest earning balances are not significant.

18A.

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement:
2021

2020

$

$

Amounts as shown above

263,687

1,210,425

Cash restricted in use over 3 months

(10,785)

(10,662)

52,902

1,199,763

Cash and cash equivalents for statement of cash flows purposes at end of
the year

18B.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
2021

2020

$

$

Lease liabilities
At beginning of year
Addition
Cash flows
Non-cash changes arising from interest accretion
At end of year

199,659

–

–

289,060

(102,000)

(102,000)

7,791

12,599

105,450

199,659
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19.

Funds
Funds of the Association include the following:
(i)

General fund
General Fund comprises of the accumulated surpluses generated from the current financial year and previous
financial periods, since the inception of the Association.

(ii)

Building fund - restricted
Building Fund is a reserve set up to meet renovation costs relating to the building of the Association. The renovation
of the building was completed during the reporting year ended 31 December 2017. Building fund will gradually be
utilised at an amount equal to depreciation charges of the renovation annually.

(iii)

Lease fund
Lease fund is maintained to be used for future redevelopment purposes of the leasehold property occupied by SKA.
The current land lease will expire in July 2028.

(iv)

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees is retained surpluses generated from Trustees’ other financial assets during the
current and previous financial years.

20.

Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Lease liability, Current
Lease liability, Non-current

2021

2020

$

$

105,450

94,209

–

105,450

105,450

199,659

The lease liability above does not include the short-term leases of less than 12 months and leases of low-value underlying
assets. There is no variable lease payment for the leases.
Lease liabilities under lease arrangements are secured by the right-of-use assets because these will revert to the lessor in
the event of default.
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20.

Lease liabilities (cont’d)
A summary of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities that shows the remaining contractual maturities is as follows:
Minimum payments

Finance charges

$

$

Present value
$

2021
Minimum lease payments payable:
Not later than one year

108,000

(2,550)

105,450

Not later than one year

102,000

(7,791)

94,209

Between 1 and 2 years

108,000

(2,550)

105,450

210,000

(10,341)

199,659

2020
Minimum lease payments payable:

Total cash outflows from leases are shown in the statement of cash flows. The related right-of-use-assets are disclosed in
Note 14.
There were no future cash outflows to which the lessee is potentially exposed that are not reflected in the measurement of
lease liabilities above.

21.

Trade and other payables
2021

2020

$

$

Outside parties and accrued liabilities

222,039

290,880

Trade payables – subtotal

222,039

290,880

108,995

137,032

69,938

61,537

30

3,329

Other payables – subtotal

178,963

201,898

Total trade and other payables

401,002

492,778

Trade payables:

Other payables:
Deferred income
Refundable deposits
Outside parties

22.

Capital commitments
Estimated amounts committed at end of reporting year for future capital expenditure but not recognised in the financial
statements are as follows:

Commitments for renovation

2021

2020

$

$

60,080

154,237
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23.

Operating lease income commitments - as lessor
A maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease amounts to be received on an annual basis for a minimum of each of the first
five years and a total of the amounts for the remaining years is as follows:
2021

2020

Not later than one year

402,890

587,790

Between 1 and 2 years

21,580

520,940

Between 2 and 3 years

–

21,580

558,010

336,438

Rental income for the year

Operating lease income represents rental income receivable for certain of the Association’s property premises. The lease
terms are negotiated for an average term of one to three years.

24.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks

24A.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The following table categorises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the reporting
year:
2021

2020

$

$

641,939

1,400,230

Financial assets that is an equity investment at FVTOCI

5,640,642

4,647,412

At end of the year

6,282,581

6,047,642

397,457

555,405

Financial assets:
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

24B.

Financial risk management
The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the finances for the entity’s operating,
investing and financing activities. There are exposures to the financial risks on the financial instruments such as credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk comprising interest rate, currency risk and price risk exposures. Management has certain practices
for the management of financial risks. However, these are not documented in formal written documents. The following
guidelines are followed: All financial risk management activities are carried out and monitored by senior management staff.
All financial risk management activities are carried out following good market practices.
There have been no changes to the exposures to risk; the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and the
methods used to measure the risk.
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24.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks (cont’d)

24C.

Fair value of financial instruments
The analyses of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. These include both the significant financial instruments
stated at amortised cost and at fair value in the statement of financial position. The carrying values of current financial
instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value
are not made when the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value.

24D.

Credit risk on financial assets
Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counterparties to discharge their
obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of cash balances with banks, cash equivalents, and certain other
financial assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the total of the fair value of the financial assets at the end of the
reporting year. Credit risk on cash balances with banks and any other financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. Credit risk on other financial assets is limited because the counter parties
are entities with acceptable credit ratings.
Note 18 discloses the maturity of the cash and cash equivalents balances.

24E.

Liquidity risk – financial liabilities maturity analysis
The following table analyses financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity (contractual and undiscounted cash flows):
Less than 1 year
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

$

1 – 3 years
$

Total
$

2021:
Gross lease liabilities

108,000

–

108,000

Trade and other payables

292,007

–

292,007

400,007

–

400,007

Gross lease liabilities

102,000

108,000

210,000

Trade and other payables

355,746

–

355,746

457,746

108,000

565,746

2020:

Liquidity risk refers to the difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. It is expected that all the liabilities will be paid at their contractual maturity. The average
credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 days (2020: 30 days). In order to meet such cash commitments, the
operating activity is expected to generate sufficient cash inflows.

24F.

Interest rate risk
The effect of interest rate risk is not significant to the Association and its Trustees.

24G.

Foreign currency risk
The effect of foreign currency risk is not significant to the Association and its Trustees.
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24.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks (cont’d)

24H.

Equity price risk
There are investments in equity shares or similar instruments. As a result, such investments are exposed to both currency
risk and market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The fair values of these
equity shares and sensitivity analysis are disclosed in Note 15C.

25.

Changes and adoption of financial reporting standards
For the current reporting year new or revised financial reporting standards were issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards
Council. Those applicable to the reporting entity are listed below. These applicable new or revised standards did not require
any significant modification of the measurement methods or the presentation in the financial statements.

26.

FRS No.

Title

FRS 116

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions - Amendment to (The 2021 amendment extends this time limit
from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022)

New or amended standards in issue but not yet effective
For the future reporting years certain new or revised financial reporting standards were issued by the Singapore Accounting
Standards Council and these will only be effective for future reporting years. Those applicable to the reporting entity for
future reporting years are listed below. The transfer to the applicable new or revised standards from the effective dates is not
expected to result in any significant modification of the measurement methods or the presentation in the financial statements
for the following year from the known or reasonably estimable information relevant to assessing the possible impact that
application of the new or revised standards may have on the entity’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

FRS No.
Title
			

Effective date for periods
beginning on or after

FRS 1
		
		

Presentation of Financial Statements – amendment
relating to Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

1 January 2023

FRS 116
		

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 – Amendments

30 June 2021

Annual Improvements to FRSs 2018-2020

1 January 2022

Various
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Statement by the Board of Trustees
SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION TRUSTEES
In the opinion of the Board of Trustees,
(a)

the accompanying statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of
changes in funds, statement of cash flows, and notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Singapore Khalsa Association Trustees (“Trustees”) as at 31 December 2021 and of the financial performance,
changes in funds and cash flows of the Trustees for the reporting year ended on that date; and

(b)

at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Trustees will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

The Board of Trustees approved and authorised these financial statements on the date of this statement.

On behalf of the Board of Trustees

Mr Gurdip Singh Usma			 Colonel (Retired) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon
Chairperson					Vice Chairperson

19 July 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION TRUSTEES
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Khalsa Association Trustees (“Trustees”), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement
of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the reporting year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Financial
Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trustees as at 31 December
2021 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Trustees for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Trustees in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics
for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the statement by the Board of Trustees but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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to the Members of SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION TRUSTEES
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions
of the Act and the FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised
and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability
of assets.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trustees’ ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Trustees or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trustees’ financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trustees’ internal control.

c)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION TRUSTEES
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (cont’d)
d)

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Trustees’ ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Trustees to cease to continue as a going concern.

e)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Naveen Sasidaran.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

19 July 2022

94

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
Year Ended 31 December 2021

Note

2021

2020

$

$

147,515

114,046

235

3,245

147,750

117,291

(9,144)

(8,050)

(9,144)

(8,050)

138,606

109,241

683,241

(518,390)

821,847

(409,149)

Transfer to lease fund

(100,000)

(100,000)

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

(300,000)

(320,064)

421,847

(829,213)

Income
Dividend income
Interest income
Expenditure
Agent’s fees

Net surplus
Fair value changes on equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), net of tax
Net surplus/(deficit) before appropriation and transfer

Net surplus/(deficit) after appropriation and transfer

4A

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position			
As at 31 December 2021

Note

2021

2020

$

$

5,640,642

4,647,412

5,640,642

4,647,412

123,670

595,053

123,670

595,053

5,764,312

5,242,465

577,708

577,708

ASSETS
Non-current asset
Other financial assets

4

Total non-current asset
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

5

Total current assets
Total assets

FUNDS
Capital – The Singapore Khalsa Association (“SKA”)
Funds
Lease fund

6

1,025,000

925,000

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees

6

2,324,375

2,435,817

Fair value reserve

1,837,229

1,303,940

Total funds

5,186,604

4,664,757

Total funds

5,764,312

5,242,465

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

96

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION

Statement of Changes in Funds
Year Ended 31 December 2021

Capital

Lease
fund

Trust fund
retained by
SKA Trustees

$

$

$

$

$

577,708

925,000

2,435,817

1,303,940

5,242,465

Net surplus for the year

–

–

138,606

–

138,606

Fair value changes on equity instruments at FVTOCI

–

–

–

683,241

683,241

Transfer from equity instruments in FVTOCI reserve

–

–

149,952

(149,952)

–

Transfer to lease fund

–

100,000

(100,000)

–

–

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

–

–

(300,000)

–

(300,000)

577,708

1,025,000

2,324,375

1,837,229

5,764,312

577,708

825,000

2,700,860

1,868,110

5,971,678

Net surplus for the year

–

–

109,241

–

109,241

Fair value changes on equity instruments at FVTOCI

–

–

–

(518,390)

(518,390)

Transfer from equity instruments in FVTOCI reserve

–

–

45,780

(45,780)

–

Transfer to lease fund

–

100,000

(100,000)

–

–

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

–

–

(320,064)

–

(320,064)

577,708

925,000

2,435,817

1,303,940

5,242,465

Fair value
reserve

Total

Current year:
Opening balance at 1 January 2021

Closing balance at 31 December 2021
Previous year:
Opening balance at 1 January 2020

Closing balance at 31 December 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows 			
Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021

2020

$

$

138,606

109,241

(235)

(3,245)

(147,515)

(114,046)

(9,144)

(8,050)

(459,941)

(1,163,667)

–

865,967

Distribution from other financial asset

149,952

–

Dividends received

147,515

114,046

235

3,245

(162,239)

(180,409)

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

(300,000)

(320,064)

Net cash flows used in financing activities

(300,000)

(320,064)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(471,383)

(508,523)

Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, beginning balance

595,053

1,103,576

Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows,
ending balance (Note 5)

123,670

595,053

Cash flows from operating activities
Net surplus
Interest income
Dividend income
Net cash flows used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of other financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets

Interest received
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

General
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars. The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Trustees on the date of statement by Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees have the power to amend
and reissue the financial statements.
The principal activities of the Trustees are to hold and manage the investment of the Singapore Khalsa Association.
The registered office is: 2 Tessensohn Road, Singapore 217646. The Trustees is situated in Singapore.

Statement of compliance with financial reporting standards
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”)
and the related interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards Council.

Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except where a financial
reporting standard requires an alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these financial
statements. The accounting policies in the financial reporting standards may not be applied when the effect of applying them
is not material. The disclosures required by financial reporting standards may not be provided if the information resulting from
that disclosure is not material.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Apart from those involving estimations, management has made judgements in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies. The areas requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgements, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed at the end of this footnote, where
applicable.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

2A.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition
Dividends from equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss only when the entity’s right to receive payment of the
dividends is established; it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity; and
the amount of the dividends can be measured reliably. This is usually ex-dividend date for quoted shares.

Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary economic environment in which the entity operates.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
At each end of the reporting year, recorded monetary balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in
non-functional currencies are reported at the rates ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair value measurement dates
respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in profit or loss except when a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. The presentation is in the functional currency.

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the entity
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All other financial instruments (including regular-way purchases
and sales of financial assets) are recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade date accounting or settlement date
accounting. A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the entity neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. A financial liability is removed from the
statement of financial position when, and only when, it is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expires.
At initial recognition the financial asset or financial liability is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Classification and measurement of financial assets
1.

Financial asset classified as measured at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), that is (a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Typically
trade and other receivables, bank and cash balances are classified in this category.

2.
		
3.

Financial asset that is a debt asset instrument classified as measured at FVTOCI:
There were no financial assets classified in this category at reporting year end date.
Financial asset that is an equity investment measured at FVTOCI:
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, an irrevocably election may be made to
present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. Fair
value changes are recognised in OCI but dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. The gain or loss that is presented in OCI includes any related foreign
exchange component arising on non-monetary investments (e.g., equity instruments). On disposal, the cumulative fair
value changes are not recycled to profit or loss but remain in reserves within equity. The weighted average or specific
identification method is used when determining the cost basis of equities being disposed of.

4.

Financial asset classified as measured at FVTPL:
There were no financial assets classified in this category at reporting year end date.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For the statement of cash flows the item includes cash and cash
equivalents less cash subject to restriction that form an integral part of cash management.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)
Fair value measurement
The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, market observable
data to the extent possible is used. If the fair value of an asset or a liability is not directly observable, an estimate is made
using valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs
(e.g., by use of the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar items, discounted cash flow
analysis, or option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances). Inputs used are consistent with the
characteristics of the asset/liability that market participants would take into account. The entity’s intention to hold an asset
or to settle or otherwise fulfil a liability is not taken into account as relevant when measuring fair value.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs to the
measurement are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety: Level 1 fair value
measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2
fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the
reporting period during which the change occurred.

		The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these
instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount of current financial instruments is
a reasonable approximation of the fair value. The fair values of non-current financial instruments may not be disclosed
separately unless there are significant differences at the end of the reporting year and in the event the fair values are
disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

2B.

Critical judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties
There were no critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that have a significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements. There were no key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting year.

3.

Related party relationships and transactions
The financial reporting standard on related party disclosures requires the reporting entity to disclose: (a) transactions with its
related parties; and (b) relationships between parents and subsidiaries irrespective of whether there have been transactions
between those related parties. A party is related to a party if the party controls, or is controlled by, or can significantly
influence or is significantly influenced by the other party.
It is not the normal practice for the members of the Board of Trustees or people connected with them, to receive remuneration,
or other benefits, from the Trustees for which they are responsible, or from institutions connected with the Trustees.
There are no significant related party transactions for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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4.

Other financial assets

Balance is made up of:
Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI

4A.

2021

2020

$

$

5,640,642

4,647,412

2021

2020

$

$

4,647,412

4,868,102

459,941

1,163,667

Movements in balances

Movements during the year:
Fair value at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Distribution from equity investment
Increase/(decrease) in FVTOCI
Fair value at end of year

–

(865,967)

(149,952)

–

683,241

(518,390)

5,640,642

4,647,412

During the reporting year certain investments in equity instruments measured at FVTOCI were derecognised to realise the
gains. The fair value of the investments at the date of derecognition was $nil (2020: $865,967). Also, during the year, the
Trustees received a cash distribution of $149,952 (2020: $nil) arising from the restructuring carried out by one of its equity
investments. The cumulative fair value change of the disposed equity shares and distribution from equity instruments of
$149,952 (2020: $45,780) was transferred to trust fund retained by SKA Trustees.

4B.

Disclosures relating to investments in equity shares at FVTOCI
The information gives a summary of the significant sector concentrations within the investment portfolio:
Level

2021

2020

2021

2020

$

$

%

%

1

1,209,099

965,164

21.4

20.8

Property industry: Singapore

1

874,182

911,836

15.5

19.6

Finance industry: Singapore

1

3,130,861

2,539,412

55.6

54.6

Telecommunication industry: Singapore

1

232,000

231,000

4.1

5.0

Airports & Air Services industry: Singapore

1

194,500

–

3.4

–

5,640,642

4,647,412

100.0

100.0

Investments managed by fund manager:
Real estate investment trust
Quoted equity shares:

Total

The fair values of quoted equity instruments are based on prices in an active market (Level 1) at the end of the reporting year.
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4.

Other financial assets (cont’d)

4C.

Sensitivity analysis for price risk of equity shares at FVTOCI
There are investments in equity shares or similar instruments. Such investments are exposed to market price risk arising from
uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. Sensitivity analysis: The effect is as follows:

A hypothetical 10% increase in the market index of quoted equity
shares at FVTOCI would have an effect on fair value of

2021

2020

$

$

564,064

464,741

For similar price decrease in the fair value of the above financial assets, there would be comparable impacts in the opposite
direction.
This figure does not reflect the currency risk, which has been considered in the foreign currency risk analysis section only. The
hypothetical changes in basis points are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

5.

Cash and cash equivalents

Not restricted in use

2021

2020

$

$

123,670

595,053

The interest earning balances are not significant.

6.

Funds
Funds of the trustees include the following:
(i)

Lease fund
Lease fund is maintained to be used for future redevelopment purposes of the leasehold property occupied by SKA.
The current land lease will expire in July 2028.

(ii)

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees is retained surpluses generated from Trustees’ other financial assets during the
current and previous financial years.
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7.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks

7A.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The following table categorises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the reporting
year:
2021

2020

$

$

123,670

595,053

Financial assets that is an equity instrument FVTOCI

5,640,642

4,647,412

At end of the year

5,764,312

5,242,465

Financial assets:
Financial assets at amortised cost

Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

7B.

Financial risk management
The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the finances for the entity’s operating,
investing and financing activities. There are exposures to the financial risks on the financial instruments such as credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk comprising interest rate, currency risk and price risk exposures. The management has
certain practices for the management of financial risks. However, these are not documented in formal written documents.
The following guidelines are followed: All financial risk management activities are carried out and monitored by senior
management staff.
There have been no changes to the exposures to risk; the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and the
methods used to measure the risk.

7C.

Fair value of financial instruments
The analyses of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. These include both the significant financial instruments
stated at amortised cost and at fair value in the statement of financial position. The carrying values of current financial
instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value
are not made when the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value.

7D.

Credit risk on financial assets
Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counterparties to discharge their
obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of cash balances with banks, cash equivalents, and certain other
financial assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the total of the fair value of the financial assets at the end of the
reporting year. Credit risk on cash balances with banks and any other financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. Credit risk on other financial assets is limited because the counter parties
are entities with acceptable credit ratings.
Note 5 discloses the maturity of the cash and cash equivalents balances. Cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of the standard on financial instruments. There was no identified impairment loss.
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7.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks (cont’d)

7E.

Liquidity risk – financial liabilities maturity analysis
The effect of liquidity risk is not significant to the Trustees.

7F.

Interest rate risk
The effect of interest rate risk is not significant to the Trustees.

7G.

Foreign currency risk
The effect of foreign currency risk is not significant to the Trustees.

7H.

Equity price risk
There are investments in equity shares or similar instruments. As a result, such investments are exposed to market price
risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The fair values of these equity shares and
sensitivity analysis are disclosed in Note 4.

8.

Changes and adoption of financial reporting standards
For the current reporting year new or revised FRS were issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards Council. None of these
required any significant modification of the measurement methods or the presentation in the financial statements.

9.

New or amended standards in issue but not yet effective
For the future reporting years certain new or revised FRS were issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards Council and
these will only be effective for future reporting years. None of these are applicable to the Trustees based on the reporting
entity’s current operations.

FRS No.
Title
			

Effective date for periods
beginning on or after

FRS 1
		
		

1 January 2023
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